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CANADA 

IN THE MATTER OF A CO~1\1ISSION, appointing the HONOURABLE 
HARRISON ANDREW McKEOW:N", a Commi:-sioner to inquire into 
and report upon affairs- of the HOME BANK OF CANADA. 

AND IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION of the Depositors in the said 
HOl\IE BANK OF CANADA. 

Before the Honourable Chief Ju,,,tire MrKeown, the above named Royal 
CommisPioner, at Ottawa, Thuri::day, the 24th day of April, 1924. 

Counocl: I 
EuGE:",E LAFLEUR, K.C., A"<D H. J. SYMINGTON, K.C., 

for the Government of the Dominion of Canada. 

R. J. McLAUGHLIN, KC., A. G. BROWNI~G, K.C., AND W. T. J. LEE, 
for the Depositors. 

Mr. LAFLEUR: If your lordship will permit, we are verifying some of these 
lPtter", ascertaining whPthrr they are already filed. 

Here is a ~ctter that is offered by my learned friend, addressed by the late 
Mr. Z. A. Lash to James Fisher, KC., on the 29th of February, 1916. I see 
no particular obj ertion to that. I know Mr. Lash's signature; I know that that 
is J.:s letter; and I suppvsP you have no other means of proving it? 

Mr. BROWNING: No. It was in Mr. -Fislwr's bank file and ::!ent by Mr. 
Fisher to Mr. Clarkson and produced in that connection. 

Mr. LAFLEUR: I suppose that may be admitted? Do you want to· file it 
now? 

~1r. BROWNING: Yes. Shall I read it to your, lordship? 
His LoJosHIP: Yes. 

EXIDBIT No. 132. 

Filed hy Mr. Browning, April 22, 1924. 
Copy letter, Feb. 29, 1916, from Z. A. Lash, K.C., to James 

Fisher, K.C., re "Home Bank, Confidential, the Pellatt 
securities, etc." 

{Copy) 

BLAKE, LASH, ANGLIN & CASSELS, 

JAMES FISHER, EsQ., K.C., 
173 Portage A venue, 

Winnipeg, Man. 

Re Home Bank. 

February 29, 1916. 

C onfidcntial. 

. MY DEAR FISHER,-! re
0

ceivcd your letter of the just as I was 
leaving last week for a week's absence on business. 

I saw Sir Thomas White while I was in Ottawa on TueEday last, the 22nd, 
and I explained the position up to that time. Among other things, I told him 
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that we were endeavouring to perfect certain securities which we were taking 
from Sir Henry Pellatt, and that it was very important that nothing should 
orrur to prevent this being completed. He understood, and said he would 
endeavour to avoid precipitating matters, as far as he could. 

On my return yesterday, I received your letter of the 21st enrlosing ropy of 
another letter which } ou wrote to Sir Thomas on that day. I also received 
yours of the 23rd trlling me of your ror.ferenre with Mr. Haney, along with 
Messrs. Crerar and Kennedy. 

I also received a letter from Sir Thomas, stating that he had received your 
letter of the 21st and f'aying, " It would appcar to me that I would only be 
jmtified in allowing a reasonable time for the Bank to perft.:ct its f'ecurity and ~ 
improve its pi,sition under the arcount.,; about which I made inquiry." 

I am writing Sir Thomas to-day, sending him a copy of your letter to me 
of the 23rd, and telling him that I hope that Pcll~tt's srcuritie;; will be com­
pleted this week, and that ~o :,;oon as· Mr. Haney returns, I will m,k to have 
a meeting of the Board called, in order that I muy explain the ,Yhole position, 
including the substance of your letters to Sir Thomas White, and ask for definite 
instructions upon the all-important matter of having a thorough examination of 
the Bank's position made by an independent competent person not connected 
with the pre~ent management. · 

The more I com,ide:- the Bank's position, even abuming that every account 
will ultimately be collected in full, the more doubtful I feel as to the possibility 
of its continuing in bu,-inrsf'. The amount locked up indefiniteiy in four large 
accounts, is probably three times the paid-up capital, and more than half the 
total d~osit,,; and if anything f'hould take place which would cause a compar­
atively small percentage of the depositors to ask for their mon~y, I do not see 
how the Bank could, without a,,sistancc from outF'ide, cont,inue v·ith open doors. 

I told Sir Thomas that my main object, sinre I learned in outline what the 
Bank's position was, has been to bring about a position, which, if the worst 
happened, would result in liquidation with open doors. This can only be brought 
about by the assistance of other Banks, and I want definite instructions from the 
Board as to how far I may go in this direction in con·mltation with Sir Thomas 
,vhite, for he is now an es:oential clement :n the situation, which cannot be dis­
regarded. He told me, and I could not dispute the correctnes;:; of his pm,ition, 
that, after you, on behalf of the Winnipeg Directors, had submitted to him 
information, which, to say the very least, wa'3 very disturbing, the responsibility 
was thrown upon him, which he could not avoid, and which would not be dis- 41 
charged because those who had invited his intervention might de,·ire him to with-
hold further action. The statementc; relating to the three accounts about which ,. 
he asked for information, were sent to him on the 22nd or 23rd. 

Faithfully yours, 
(Sgd.) Z. A. LASH, 

Hie; LORDSHIP: Mr. Browning, I have not in mind all the letters that have 
been put in up to the present, but is there contairn·d in any of them statements 
to Sir Thomas White or to Sir Henry Drayton subsbntially the same a:i thei:;e 
which are made here in Exhibit 132 by Mr. La,:h? 

Mr. BROWNING: I presume f'O\ my lord. The papers which have been put 
in were all from Mr. Fisher on behalf of the three Western Directors and were 
accompanied by the statements made in this letter. 

His LoRDSHIP: The statements made by M;. Fi1,her, acting for the three 
W e'3tern Directors, would contain a good deal of surmise, but this seems to be 
so definite, by a man who was the Bank's Counsel, that I was wondering if '3tate­
ments of this kind had been drawn to the attention of the acting head of the 
Department. 
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Mr. BROWNING: The reason we are putting that in is in order that it may 
be before your lordehip, before Sir Thomas White has been examined. 

Mr. LAFLErR: I think it would be only fair to put that before Sir Thomas 
White. 

His LORDSHIP: I think so. 
Mr. LAHE"CR: Do I unden=:tand that this letter, or a copy of it, had been 

:;,ent to every one• of tl1e Directors? 
Mr. BROWNING: The letters, copies of which have been furnished to the 

Commi~"ion through the secretary, were delivered personally. This letter had 
not. 

Mr. LAI•LE.l.R: It is one of the letters rrceived. 
Mr. BROWNING: Yes, this letter came from Mr. Fisher, through Mr. Clark- , 

son, through the Home Bank file. 
Mr. LEE: I may say, sir, following your lord-,hip's directions, we had a 

letter, signed by Counsel for the depositors, sent to all the Counsel in Toronto 
who represented the various Directors and those under indictment. 

1 Mr. BROWNING: His lordship has the copy; the originals were delivered 
per:,;onally yesterday afternoon. 

His LORDSHIP: I suppose that is what was handed to me a few minutes 
ago by the secretary. 

Mr. BROWNING: We have m,certained to the best of our ability that those 
gentlemen were the only ones who were intere:=-ted for the Directors. Mr. Ward 
Wright in particular is acting as General Solicitor for them all, and they were 
delivered pe~sonally by messenger. 

His LORDSHIP: Perhaps you might ~tate, Mr. Browning, if you will, to 
whom these letters were written, l::O that it may go on record. 

1fr. BROWNING: Yes, my lord. The letter is dated April 23rd, 1924, and 
reads a':l followi; :- \ 

" Re Home Bank Investigation. 

"DEAR Sm,-It has been sugge:,;ted by the Hon. Mr. Justice 
McKeown that as certain evidence has been submitted to the Commis­
sion which may affect some, or all, of the Directors, and that further 
evidence of a :,;imilar character may be given, that notice should be given 
to Counsel for the Directors so that they may have .an opportunity of 
attending the sittings of the Commission, which will be re:,;umed at 
Ottawa, to-morrow, Thursday, the 24th instant, at 10.30 a.m., in the 
Railway Commission Room. 

" The chief witnes:::e:,; to be, t"alled will be Sir Thomas White and Mr. 
Machaffie. 

"Yours truly, 
B/HC " C'o1msc.l for Depositors." 

That was delivered to:-
Mr. W. N. Tilley, Chief Coun-:,elJor the Directors. 
Mr. A. C. McMa::;ter, who i::i oo-sociated with Mr. Tilley and acting for 

individual Directors. 
:V1r. D. T. Symons, who is acting for some of the Directors, I think Mr. 

Barnard, but I am not sure. He is acting for Mr. Jones, who is also under 
indictment. . 

Mr. Ward Wright, of Rowell, Reid, Wood & Wright, who is acting as 
solicitor for the Dirertors. 

And to Mr. :N. W. Rowell, who i::i acting with Mr. Tilley as one of the chief 
Coun,,el for thP. Directors. ' 
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And t,1 \Ir. T. -X. Phf'l:m, wh, i,:: a1tinif, I think, for l\Ir. Daly. 
And to l\Ir. G. H. KilnH r, "110 i,:: :H·ting for otlwr of the Dircttun. 
And to R. "· Robrrt,-on, who i,- . ,•t.ng partirnlarly fur :'..\Ir. Barn:1rd. 
And to l\1r. Hartley De wart, ·who i~ ;H ting for ~Ir. Calwrt, wLo wa<; the 

A,-,i..,tu1t- :'..\L11a2;er, and wl:u is undCT ;ndil'tm:-nt. 

:'..\Ir. LrT: I might ~ay, my lord, t 11at a motion wa~ made yr-,tad:tv in 
Turunt-o for furthrr part.ieul:ir,-, of the allegation-, made by the Crown ag,1imt 
t]w.,:e Director.,: who are on tfrd, and th<' otl,cr gcntlPmr•n \1 1·o ar" on trial; 
tk,t moti11n wa, bkc·n under advi -fmf'nt hy :'..\Ir . .Tu:<tilc '\Yriglit. .Tud~rn1t'ut 
upon that moti1111 Ju, bH·n re'-Prvr'l, awl Crown C·,unst>l, l\1r. tkC 1rthy, I 
un,l<'r.,:tand from the publir pre-,, 'rn,- ,ubpui0 nard hi,- wit-111~"l'-1 for :'..\fornby next, 
at the A.,:,izr'- nuw going on in Toronto. L fo11~e trial" go or1, ;t H'l'm.::i to me,· ' 
:-ir, tl:d th Coun,cl for the drpo:::ifor.., wil'. not be in a position to pla, e all th,} 
evidPm,, be1ore you a,; expeditiously a~ we would likP. It ~rem~ to me that 
proLably the Crown Coun..,el, :\Ir. Ldkur, might lw able to advi"e us curly thii:; 
afternoon of wh('thrr l\-Ir. ,Ju..,tice Wright L .. , given judgment ur i~ about to give 
judgment to-day or to-morrow upon t ,1at motion, btTau:-c if that trial gnp,- 011, 
on \1onday nPxt, we certainly will not, I do not tl-~nk, be in a po,-ition to go 
on witl1 our evidnH f\ berau-;e a grc,tt many of the p1,p0rs will be in use by the 
Crown Coun.:.;rJ. 

Hi-; Lonn,-: iUP: Did wr not .-rrure all the papers in Toronto tliat we rt-quire, 
or l'Opic, of th0m? 

Mr. LEE: '\Ve haw ,f('Uri·d a good many; a,- many h-:, we po~"ibly think 
we may require; but from time to time there i- nPw evidence eroppina; up. 

Hi-; LoRD~HIP: I quitr appn•fr1+e that. but I do not quite urnlcrsLmd now 
the sum total of what you h11vc saill. 

"\I,-. L1., : Tlw idea running in my 1,,ind i-., thl't if :'..\Ir. Jm,fo•p ,vright 
should a;ive juclu;mPnt eitlwr to-day or to-morrow 01cining the defendant~ to go 
on thL•ir trial on ::\Ionday next., this Comrni,,~ion may have t.u adjourn ,ine die. 

lh, LoRD---HIP: Hardly that. We will be bad{ again ~ome time, I am afraid. 
'\Ye may have to Like quite an adjournment. 

:Mr. LAFLErR: It or,·urs to me that po ·<:ibly it might lw unfair to the parties; 
in ihat lilig:r.tion in Toronto that ·,-.,' 1--houli~ proc-r 0 d while that L'ial i,; going 
on. I do not know how ,·uur lo:d,-hip will vic•.y tl:at, but I thin\: t 11:-t will huve 
to lH· < 11n-,idcrrd. i 

ff:,, Lo1to,-: .. np: Wdl. it will not lw on ti!l :'..\IonJay anyway. 
:\fr. LAFLEl.R: Not till :'\Iomhty, and I f''{pe1·t to h~n-e ti,;ing-; l·ither thi, . ' 

affornoon or tu-worruw morning. I ought to gPt a t<'1••gr.m1 :rom ::\'lr. :'\fc(' 1rthy 
,.dvi--i'1!!; nw whcti1rr thr t·aH•~ tcre going on or not. If thc·y are going on then it 
,\ ould Le for u~ tu rnn,4ider whdhrt ,, ,. ouq;ht tu pre ., thiR im1uiry during the 
p,md, n1y of t !tat trial. It mi1;ht cc,11<•,•i vdJly interfere with b()th partie-.. 

His LoRJ,)"-HIP: 0:1, T 1·an harLl'y -t e h, ,w it r• ,uh1 hvoicl interfering one· v. ith 
the othe·. It ,'.oe--, nut .-2c111 tu nw tli..t :hey umld be cundw·tcd simu]Jnneou~ly. 

::\1r. L.\Fir. _i; '\Ye rnhht bring out evict, Ill c her<' ,vhich might be r,•gar,k:d 
:'" likdy to in;lm'll<'P a ju.). ThPre arc many tliinu;-- ,,hich prc:ot'nt t!.l1t1~(•ln'~ 
to , w•',, mind. 

HiR LOHT' -t· ,P: '\Vdl, ~Ir. Lafleur, Lrrn- fur u·e the qur:--tion~, upo:1 whirh 
th, !iahility of the Di,·1 ctnr.,; wou,:d <i.rpen·l in nnnPrtion with th·ir 1.ri1>b 
,upp.: ,.' t'I cnmn1-·me mxt :Moncl:iv. to 1,L' ag1tate1l in f1i'4 m'.l'HT which ,n a,·e 
for tl,l JJ· •"-c,nt tivin1-,:; attention to l.rr<'? 

~Ir. LAFLF.1·R;' T:1:s :::l my under,,tand:n,~. 
<led al ,mt thr htiµ...ttioa t11rt rn:ty b8gin on 

I du r.ot profr,, to know a gre:.it 
~1ondLy, but it i..: a cun,-.pira< y 

I 
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eha,,ge, and my unden/an<ling is that all this evidence that we have been giving 
tu you, padded profits, the inclu-,ion of unpaid intere<it in the profit account, 
and the declaration of <liYidt>nds made in consequence, the inflation of securi­
ti~s, and the values of rral rstate, all the::;a matters will be necesc;arily gone into 
in that conspiracy charge, so that we may have to consider the propriety of 
going on votwitl1f'tanding the pendency of that trial. 

His LORDSHIP: You i,,ee, Mr. Browning bus more than once urged it on us 
that the claim the depositors are puEing forward is again::;t the Government. 

Mr. LAFLEUR: Ye,:, quite so. 
, His LoR~SHIP: As a foundation for that claim, I suppose they feel it 

incumbent upon them to show what that claim is, mi:::conduct on the part of the 
Directors in the line tl1at you have just indicated. 

Mr. LAFLLUR: Ir seems to me thtct is the first ~tep in the inquiry. If there 
,vas misconduct on the part of the Directors then it is hard to see why the 
GO\·ernment should be exprcted to interfere with the admini::;tration of that 
hank. But granted misconduct, and mi,conduct such as has bern suggested by 
the corespondence filed up till now, why, then, there may be a claim founded 
upon the obligation of the Government to interfere. 

His LoRDi:iHIP: vVell, as far a-s the inquiry has gone we have pretty well 
completed that branch of the inquiry. 

Mr. LAHLGR'. Yes, we have, although we have still some important wit­
nesst':, to examine. 

"\ His LORDSHIP: On that branch? 
"\_ M:r. LAFLEUR: I understand that Mr. Machaffie's evidence will be heard. 

\ 

Mr. L:i...i.;: He will be here to-morrow. 

His LORDSHIP: You see, if we rould get by that feature of it, or to that 
age of the proceedings so thftt we can say,,\\ ell, that is behind us, or you 
ntlemen can say, I have put before you everything we have to offer in con­

nc1_]tion with that branch of our G-laim and now we will proceed to address our­
sel1es as to whether, under the circumstance:,, the Government should have 
intrffered in the way the petitioners set out. 

Mr. LAFLELR: It is my present intention, subject to what the l\Iinii;;ter may 
decille, to give e, idence through our special Auditor as to the state of the bank 
from tlw time of its ~necption until the time of the failure. That will be gener'.11 
t•.viclrnce, which will al-o include evidence of the -<pecial years complained of by 
the depositors, and inevitably, I suppose, in t¾e course of that examination, if it 

- takes place, if I am authorized to proceed with it, that will bring in the conduct 
cf the Directors. I do not see how we can avoid that. 

His LORDSHIP: I do not either. , 
11r. LAHHR: Perhaps we had better po,-tpone a dcci$ion on. this point 

until we have definite tiding-; from Toronto as to ·whether the trial is going on. 
If the trial doe~ t1ot go on I suppo:;e we will have to go on. We cannot delay till 
t:10 autumn becau;;c the trial may ,-;t-and over for E'ever'.11 months. If it does go 
on on Monday, conceivably we might ~be wjlling to arrept the findings in that 
trial. ' 

Mr. L:rn: We would not want to be bound by that deric:;ion. 

Mr. LAFLEUR:' It may be open to consider that, and i;;ee if they are 
traver~ill!-' the c:ame evidence that we would have traversed, if those findings 
are ~at:sfactory. I do not know what they will be, and, of course, I am not 
a,-king you to be bound by them. 

His LORDSHIP: Are you thrn rather suj!gesting that if the Directors should 
be arquittrrl. in these proceedin!!s unfortunately pending again;:,t them counse,. 
for the depositors might consider they have no caf'e? 
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Mr. LAFLEUR: No. I do not think they would rhoo.:le to be bound by that, not likely; they would want to have anothtr trial before another tribunal. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: The Directors whom we consider are the most guilty are both dead, the late Senator Ma<;on and his son J. Cooper Mason who were Pre::ident and Manager of the bank respectively. 
His LORDSHIP: Do you say they are dead? • 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: They are both dead, so of course they are not under indictment. Some of these Directors might be freed owing to their ignorance, or to their having; been dereived. They might be acquitted of the conspiracy charge, which, of rourse, would not affect our raf'e in any way. · 
Mr. LAFLEUR: There are many grounds on which the conspiracy charge might be maintained which would not affect this particularly. 
His LORDSHIP: Xo, but I thought, from something which you said, that perhaps you were suggesting that ,the depositors might take those :findings as conclusive. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: Of court>e, as I say, both those men have passed on, ancf I imagine it is pos~ible that the President, the late James Mason, and his son the Manager, J. Cooper Mason, may possibly have deceived some of the Direr,tors. Take Directors at the time when these proceedings were going on, like Mr. Crerar, Mr. Pers:ie, and Mr. Kennedy, these men, of course, it appears / from the corrcspondenre, were innocent of any wrong-doing. 
His LORDSHIP: Are they under indictment? ,. ' 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: No, they are not under indictment. Maybe some of / the Directors under indictment are as innocent aci they are. ( 
Mr. LAFLEUR: The rharges laid are with referenre to occurrences in 1922, I think, shortly before the failure of the bank. It does not go back to 1916, or anything like it. ' 
~ow, there is another thing that I wou!d like to mention to your lord!"P.i~. There was some suggestion yesterday that I might be able to furnish my lea1, .d frirnds with documents which we have di::.covered in the course of our inq\'Iiry into the condition of the bank, and I said that I would consult the l\.fini::;tcr and see whether these could be made available to them. I regret to say that I was unable to find the Minister, as the Parliamrnt opens only this afternoon. I imagine he will arrive by the noon train, and my friends have considerately said they would postpone any application of that kind until I had an oppor-tunity of seeing him. So that I am not able to give them comm.,unicatio'l of any documents this morning, if indeed. there are any, which they nave not got already, and that I doubt very much, because I think our Auditor worlcd. in conjun('tion with l\fr. Clarkson, perhaps not in conjunction but contempor­aneously with and a great part of the time in the same room, so \hat it i:c, not likely that we have anything, except by way of deductions, and those deductions , will be made by our Auditor when he is examined in the course of his testimony, but I doe not think we have any original document::i which my learned friends have not got. We have copies which were made from the originals in Mr. Clarkson's posset>.:lion, so that I doubt very much wheth'er they can get any enlightenment from any papers I can show them. However, if they will specify any~hing in particular I will submit it to the Minister as soon as he arrives. 
Mr. LEE: If a report has been made by Mr. Edwards to the Minidter we W01Jld very much like to get a copy of that report. 
His LORDSHIP: Mr. Edwards' report to the Minister? 
Mr. LAFLEUR: I do not think it is· at all likely that the Government would desire that report, which is a confidential report and generally contains not merely fact,, which have been discovered but suggestions and ,advLce, to be 
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handed out. That is all in the way of a privileged communication, and I do not 

think mv learned friend should ask for that. 
In any event, I would not be prepared to give them an undertaking as to 

it without consulting with the Minister. You see, Mr. Clarkson did not file 

his report. He spoke from it and e~cluded certain parts which he thought in 

the interest of all concerned should not be made public. There are some pending 

claims and it would affect the rerovery of those claims, or settlements which 

are now being negotiated with certain parties; it would affect all those trans­

actions to have the det:lils of an inquiry published in the newspapers. However, 

that I would submit to the Minister also when he arrives. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: Of coun:ie, our view merely is that all of that should be 

placed before your lordship. 
His LORDSHIP: The factr:,, yes, I think that is right. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: We do not desire to have any confidential document<; or 

anything of tliat kind, but if Mr. Edwards, the Auditor, has investigated and has 

tabulated the facts, why, nothing of course should be kept fr0m you of that 

nature. 
Mr. LAF'LEt:R: We will give my learned friends all the facts. 
Your lordship will remember that we made an appointment with Sir Thomas 

White for half past two this afternoon, and as we have not got these documents 

that my friends were asking for, as I cannot get them, or permission'to com­

municate anything this morning until I see the Minister, I E'uggest that we 

adjourn until half past two, in order to resume the examination of witnesses. 

Will that be agreeable? 
Mr. LEE: Quite agreeable to us. , 
His LORDSHIP: Before we separate now, it has been determined to examine 

Sir Thomas White this afternoon, and Mr. Machaffie to-morrow. 

Mr. LAFLEUR: Yes. 
Mr. LEE: I communicated with Mr. :\1achaffie last night and he says he will 

be here to-night and will be available for examination to-morrow morning. 

His LORDSHIP: Well, that is very good. _The point rfwant to keep in mind, 

and one on which I know I will receive all possible assistance frorp. you gentle­

men, is that our proceeding~ here are being made available for the Committee 

on Banking and Commerce, and we want to push along so that they may have 

the material in their hands, and we will not loiter on that ,vork, which will 

probably take us pretty well the rest of the week examining ).fr. Machaffie and 

Sir Thomas White. 
Mr. LAFLEL'R: No doubt. 
His LORDSHIP: Then you will give consideration, Mr. McLaughlin, as to 

your subsequent witne1-,::es after ;:\ir. Machaffie, so that they may follow along in 

rotation. 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: Yes, but I do not know that we will have any. 

His LORDSHIP: Then we will resume at half past two this afternoon. 

(Adjourned at 11 a.m. until 2.30 p.m. on Thursday, 24th April, 1924.) 
/ . 
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AFTERNOON SESSION 

OTTAWA, o~n., THcRc;nw, 24th APRIL, 1924. 

ProrrrJing.;:: resumed at 2.30 p.m. 

Counsrl: 

l:-,~mc Coun:-el were pre:;,cnt as at fie morning .•es,-ion, a1irl: I 
Sm THOMAS ,vHrTE, KC., appearing on 11:'3 own behalf. 

Sm THO:IIAS ,VHITE: My lord, at thr ml'd,ing of the Commi,-ion in Toront,o 
m1 Tm -riay you were good enough to ,;:uggr,t that I ,;hould luwe tLl' privilege of 
hl'ing n•prf-cntcd by Coun-,el. I do not n·gard thut ;l'l n·.!CL•i'ary brr:1u::,c I think tlil' re,·ord and my -evideure wi11 make my po-ition prrfpc•tly clear; and 
nnt,\\ ;th~tanding the old adage with rr~pP1·t to tl:e rlient who ha,- himsdf for a lawyer; I :-;hall condurt my own c,1,e thif' afternoon; that is to ~ay, I shall put in my examination in chief, and after ere •,--i·i-,,rninat:on I shal1, ,-o to ,:pr9.k, 
re-ex,,rn;ne my,:elf, if that should b1i nr1 r- ,ary; anrl Lter on in the courtie of fie procrrding:-:, if it carriE.~ your lord;:hip', judgment, if anything ,:houkl 
tr:1w-pire that would -eem to me to require thut I ~hould adrluce any evidence, or at the conclusion that I shouid make argurnpc1t, I sharll a,-.k your luro~hip for that privilrge. At the present time it i:; not 'n my mirnl that it wi:l be nece-3,ary. 
I now a"k that I be allowrd to ccmtinue my f'X:trnination in chief. I am r1'ady 
to go on. 

Hn, LottDl::ilIIP: That is quite suti,fac tnry, :-,ir Thoma,, and will you sit 
rlown? 

Sm T1w,rA..-; ,, HITE: Yrs, my lord. I shall take adv:1nbge of your 
kindne~, and :,it down. 

I do not know whether or not, my lord, you regard the letters and com­munintion:,; and other dorumr0 nt~ whieh WPrP pre-:cnted at the first ,:p,:-ion 
as pruwn: or whether you de,-ire me to prc,ve sud1 of the ht.ters a:- pro­
ceeded frum me, and tho~e I rcceivE-Ll. I may s:1y, to save t.ime, a-; I am 
anxious to do, that I han looked o,•pr the rPcord, and it srrms to me, 
although the mattl'r i~ now of eight years' ,,t,.nding, that tb>~c lrtfors which 
have bPrn on fill' in the Drp.1rtment ,:incr 1916 and d0\1 n to the prr:-ent 
time-I am rl'ferring now to tho:-e which apprar in the evidrnc r, in the first day's pronedingt'-Wt>rc received by tte Departmnnt and w,·n• letters ;rnt out, by rn1. I rle:::ire to n,frr t0 ,;ornc•. of tl·,-m inrli,:du;d'v, not nrre,:,:irily all, 
l,p1 :Ill~!' I have ::ome c·0mmcn~ by way of l',·it!Pnr·e to make nr0n them. I IP:,ve it for your lord~hip to say whrthrr yu..1 tliink rwry oue ,-hould be proven, ,o to ,prak, by mA or not. 

He, LORD>'HIP: I do not think so. "'.p ac·:·t>ptcd t:,t' fi!P from tLr DPprut­mrnt as a pu1>lic rrr<,rd. 
Sm. TrroMA.., W .dITE: I think that i,- right, :oir. 

'xow I will c:ircct ~ttrntiun 4-r.•t to thr C'onfid, nti:1: n,1·m•>r::inclum from JHm< ~ Fi-lwr, for tne ,vr:.-.t.ern DirP1 tnr,, wl1i.-h i,- Exi,J>it Ko. 2 in rprord :No. 
1. (Pria:r 12.) I wi~h to ~tdP th· cir1·um,tar11•,,-, undrr ,vhi1 h that wa-, rrreived 
anJ wl1:1t. tran,pire, ! wlwn J\Ir. Fic;l1rr ,·: mr info my {>~re. Yo11 will ob 0 rrve, 
sir, that it i:- markt·d "Confidrnt:rX" ,ri < n \Ir. L"i"hrr came b my offi ·1~ and bndr ! me that mrmnrandum, I told l':m th:1t if l:r le ft it \Yith me I c;hould 1k rline tu rPgard it a,, c0nfidrntial. HP ,:aid tl1at he Jud :ntcnc!P,-! it for my 
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informat-ion. I ,-.::iid tirnt if he kft it, I .,'",uld haYe to hke the matter up with 
th:> Heme Bank and that I ;:;hou!-i ded:ne to regard the matter as l'onfidential. 
:\L Fi,:her, after thinkinµ; the mattrr over, ,-aid he would leave it with me; 
and tlie dot·utnr'nt, with enr losurc.; and a] t11e h•t+,1•r,; from Mr. Crerar to J ameR 
:\b,un, and a;] the other document-:, a very larp:e number of them, wne left 
with me, :,;o far as I recollrrt, and I am rnre I am rigl1t, with that ,letter, und 
that apprnrs to be t.he ra,:e from the e, iclenLc whir Ii w.1-, given at the first 
,-P,a-:ion by Mr. Roberts. 

I mention sprrially that that Fi:,hcr communiration and all Exhibit; have 
bt·<'n :n the Department of Finnn, e sinre 1916, brrau,e I am ;:;orry tu ;-·1y thnt 
1n:s:-tatement, ha\ e bc·rn made regarding it and a wrong impres'3ion rn!ttted. 
I do not think that on your lordship's mind a wrong imprr-:~ion has l1Pen crrat.ed. 
But with rrgard to the petition it is stated that I merely referred the mater to 
Z. A. La-:h. This is untrue. 

On .J :muary 24t!1, 1916, I wrote J amr., Mason, PrP;..ident of the Bank­
I I'.x. 43. page 75. )-t.hat I had receiw':l offi,·ially ]\fr. Fisher's letter and <·died 
for report upon the loanR mentioned. I clirert a,ttcntion specially to 43, and 
whilr I am glr.d to re:id the who:e of it, there is one s1:dion at the encl to whirh 
I df':'ire :=:prcrn'.!y to refer:-

"In direrting to you t-hi,- letter with rcferenre to the memorandum 
whirh, aR I have sbted, has come bdore me offir·ially, I am following 
the practiee which we have hithnto adoptrd in ,nmilar ett:,es, a-nd am 
acting under the provisions of Ser-tion 113 of the Bank Art." 

~edion 113 of the Bank Act is:-
"The l\Iini:;ter may al~o rnll for .special return-; from any bank when­

ever, in hiR judgment, tlwy are nee~:5.,ary to a full nnd I omplct.r knowledge 
of it-: condition." 

In mv letter to Mr . .James 1\fr,;:;on I told him that I wn>' calling for this 
n port lwc:a,1,-r it had bern the practice, and that I wa..; ar·ting unclrr the pro­
v1-:ion~ of ..,rction 113 of the Bank Art. 

Now on .January 26th, I ,vrote Sydney .Jone::i, thr"auditor of the Bank, under 
section 56A of the Bank Act, directing him to report to me rr,;pecting the-;e 
lo:rn~. See Exhibit.;; 45, 46, 47, 48, 49 and 50, and :;ce 11;:;o Exhibits 69, 70 and 
71. I will take the>'e up one by one. 

In thC' Bank Act of 1913 sertion 56.\ if':-
"The 1\Iini,.;t{'r may dired and require any nuditor, appointed under 

the ne:\.t preceding section of this Act"-
as 1\1r . .Jones was-

"or any other auditor whom he may ,select. to examine and inquire' 
specially into any of t-he affairs or bu:;ine::lS of the bank, and ~he auditor 
so appointed or H'lertc>d as the case may be, fhall at the conrlu:e-ion of his 
examindion and inquiry n·port fully to the :'.\1ini:;trr the result, tlwrrof." 

I do not v.ant to argue the case at thi::i "tage, but I call your lordship's 
attentiun to tl)e fact that it i-:1 an unconditioned dis::retion in the Minister wit:1 
rqi;ard to callmg for rPturm::. 

Now in Exhibit Ko. 43 I tell General Ma,:on ·that I do ,not i:,ct any time 
limit: he had asked for t,,irty day::i' Rtay, but I sugge,..,ted that his reply should 
be ('ompleted and forward<:cl at as early a date a-; poF-;ible. 

I mcnLon thff'r thini:s be\'l_;use of the str.+ement that I engaged Mr. Lash, 
or nwrely referred the matter to Mr. Lash, as the petition sayR. 

Exhibit 46 i~ my letter to Sydney .Jonrs, the auditor of the Bank; and 47 is 
his h<·knowlrdgment. 48 is a letter advif'ing Mr. Fisher of what I had done; 
name!:,:, thfit I had under the provisions of the Bhnk Act, called for returns 
from the bank and from the auditor. 

\ 
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Exhibit 49 is another letter from Mr. James Ma::;on stating that the 
Board has bren in continuous FeFFion. Evidently reporting to me in answer to 
my letter. And Exhibit 50 is a letter from me to General Mason on the same 
subject. 

Now as I am directing my evidence towards that statement in the petition, as 
I have stated, I proceeded under the Bank Act, 13trictly according to its provi­
sions and the usage of the Department. I asked Mr. Lash later on wheh he 
and Haney came to see me, to take further security from Pellatt and Pellatt and 
to look into the Prudential matter. Haney to do nothing important without 
his advice and• LaEh to report to me. See the letter of Haney containing the 
unanimous re5olution of the Board of October 29th, 1918. 

I am going to ask your lordohip to pPrmit me to prove that, it has not been 
provrn yet, and to put it in. Mr. Lee's copy, which I had this morning, was not 
quite accurately marked. This is in No. 3 of the proceedings. 

Mr. LEE: That will he Exhibit 96. 
Sm THOMAS WHITE: 96 I think probablv is the one and I thank you 

for the suggeRtion. I testify that I received that ktt1•r, with the enclo.;ure of the 
unanimous rc.,olution of the Board, certified by its Pre~ident. Now this is 
what it says: 

"Early in 1916 J\fr. Haney and Mr. Lash had an interview with the 
Minister of Finance, explained to him the then position of the bank, 
referred to the consequences of an investigation at the instance of the 
Minister, and explained to him the intentions of the Board with respect 
to the future control and management of the bank. Mr. Haney stated 
that it was his intention to conrn~t with Mr. LaRh upon all important 
matters relating to the bank's affairs before taking action thereon." 

That is at page 183 of No. 3 of the proceedings. Mr. Lash was Counsel 
for the bank. He came down with Mr. Haney. I had confidence in :Mr. Lash's 
integrity, his financial ability, and his legal ability, and I told him that I would 
expect that Mr. Haney would consult with Mr. Lash upon everything that was 
done, and that Mr. Lash would report to me from time to time with regJ.rd to 
the matter. I also said to Mr. Lash that I desired him to take security in the 
Pellatt account, which Feemed to me to be weak, and to look into the Prudential 
Trust account, becam;e a purely legal quc:,tion of ultn vires had arisen there. 

I did not engage Mr. Lash to make an investigation of the affairs of the 
bank, a::; has been Ftated; and Mr. Lf!-sh never rPceivcd one cent- He did not 
act for me and wa::: not entitlPd to receive anything. I a"'ked him to do that and 
he was to look into the Prudential and to take securities there, because I did 
not know of any man that would do it better, and l\1r. Lash was an absolutely 
honest man. 

I next, draw attention to my memorandum of an interview with Haney and 
Barnard. What number is tliat Mr. Lee? 

Mr. LEE: Exhibit No. 51 at page 80. 
8ir THOMAS WHITE: That memorandum is d, tcd Ottawa 1/'ebruary 2nd, 

1916, ''Memorandum re Home Bank of Canada," and reads as follows:-
"l\Ie~.:;rs. Haney and Barnard, K.C., called on me a few clay~ ago with 

reference to the affairs of the above Bank. They stated among other 
things that they had only recently become Directors and believed if given 
a little time they could reorganize the affairs of the Bank so as to place 
it upon a much better baeis. They cliscus~ecl with me generally the 
Prudential Trust account, the Fro~t Account, and the Pellatt account. 
I spoke to them strongly a:; to the ne('r~,;:ity for bringing pre:0sure to bear 
upon Pellatt and the Prudential Trust Company, whose affairs I Rtated 
I would probably investigate if I came to the conclm:ion that it was not 
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. 
living up to its engagement with the Bank. I spoke strongly as to the 
Frost acrount and generally impre&'led upon them that a heavy duty 
developed upon them in respect of the administration of the Bank with 
which they were now identified. With reference to the matter of payment 
of dividends and taking into profit account intereFt upon such loans as the 
Fro:,;t loan, I stated that this was a matter of judgment developing upon 
the Directors who would. have to be careful to see that they did not by 
payment of divyiends impair the capital of the Bank and diminieh the 
security of depositors and other creditors. 

(Sgd.) W. T. WHITE. 

The word "developed" in line 9 page 81 should be "devolved." "A heavy 
duty dPvolved upon them." I think that J'lfr. Haney had only recently become 
a Dirertor and Barnard al:,;o. 

Now I made that memorandum in pursuance of a pract.ice which I fol­
loweJ in my Department. Any important interview of which I desired to 
preserve a record, I dictated the substance of it to my secretary, and filed the 
memorandum. I have many such memoranda as that and it is not an uncommon 
practice; a very useful practice I think. 

Then I received a letter from Mr. Fisher, dated February 18th, 1916, and 
which appears at page 81 as Exhibit No. 52. I think I will read the -whole of 
this letter, sir, if you will permit me. Otherwise I do not think you wi,11 get the 
run of it. It is dated Winnipeg February 18th, 1916, and reads ~s follows:-

"Hon. Sir THOMAS WHITE, 
Ottawa, Ont. 

Dear Sir THOl\1:AS WHITE:- Personal 

Re Home Bank 

Referring to the memoranda and papers that I left with you on the 
22nd ult., in connection with Bank matters, under instruc,tions from my · 
clients the three W-estern members of the Board, I had quite expected 
before this to communicate further with you, informing you as to any 
light that was thrown on the ;-;ituation at the r.Q£_ent meetings of the 
Board. It happens, however, that Mr. Crerar, one of my clients, has been 
absent from the City practica,lly ever since their return, so that they 
were unable to taka the matter up fully with, me. I quite expected Mr. 
Crerar to have returned yesterday, but now I lrarn that he will not be 
bark until Monday next. 

Meantime, I had a wire on the 15th in::<t., from Mr. Lash, in whirh 
it was intimated that he was in communication with you-that you were 
a.,;king for a report on some matters, particulars of which he did not 
mention, but which I assume related to the matters referred to in my 
memoranda. In this wire, Mr. Lac,h ~tated, also, that he had written ·you 
explaining the preFent poFition, and that the Board was now in accord, 
and would have new management and full investigation as soon as possible, 
adding that he had the information that you aeked for, but as it would 
be, useless to you unless full investigation were made, he was holding it 
in the hope that you would allow investigaEon to be made under the 
direction of the Board, and he suggested that I should get my clients to 
communicate with you and make reques-t accordingly. 

Now, I regret that through Mr. Crerar's absence, I cannot confer 
with my clients on the subject of this telegram until Mr. Crerar's return. 
Meantime, however, I may say that the situation generally has been 
8omewhat fully explained to me, and was discussed between us, imme-

.. 
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dLttely after their r<'turn from Toronto, and I uncler,too1l pretty fully 
the f'ituation, and their idea'- as t-0 wh..t -.:tcps they wou'.rl wi,;h to ~ee 
taken in the immediate future. 

Ii i~ true that my rli<'nt" are rno,t de,:irou, to <·o-opnatc harmoniom­
ly with ~lr. H :rney, wi10m Mr. La:-li. rightl:r a,-. I think, regards as the 
.-trong man amon,!-,t the Easfrrn l\lrmLer,-. of tlw Bo:.1rd, and at the recr>nt 
Ill( l'trng~ I under::tand my cli<'nl, g,1ve evidrnC'e of ,Ul'h de-_,ire. But it 
wa~ quite clear to me th2.t tr,ey woul<;I not for a moment be 11,ntPnt with 
an inve::tigation to be rondurtcrl by the Board t:.; at prc 0 <'nt t·on"t ituted. 
It w,,~ dt:rided, in,leed, that aft,,:· ::.\Ir. Crr:-ar returnerl I Wai' to prepare 
a rvmrnunicdion tn be ~cnt to you, c,xpre,.:-,ing mc~t ,~;e,mg;ly tlwir de;,ire 
that a spel'ial audit of the Bank', u:fai:-,-- ttmr-l<ng rspccially thr larger 
account-" in the Toronto office~-,h, •t:lc. he dirrdrd by the Finarn·r )Jrpart­
ment. Tht>Se r.ccount:5 would indudP t:,pr!1 ially the J,'ru,.t, tit(• Prudential, 
anrl the Barnard arr·,unt,-. The b.ttrr, t!J('y ~tron~ly felt, f.hould be 
fully inve:'+igated notwithf<tandin~ tlic ,,Lttl<'mrnt that had been rrported 
to them rrr1 ntly, a:- reirrrecl to in thE mtrnor.mdum upon that acc,iunt, 
and the attaehed papPr::,. I \Ya,: nc,t, h,nwnr, to wri~e you unt.il l\Tr. 
Crnsr's return, when I would hP able to ,mbmit to thm a draft of the 
propo:::rd f'ommunic,1tion. On rr,·r ipt, L<rn·ever, of 11r. L:, -11', tclq!;ram 
I Jelt that I ought to reply in ~rneral trrms withont awaiting l\lr. Crrrar'.~ 
return. I had delayed my rep.y hith1•rtu in tl:r exp<'1 Ltfon of his return 
yP:-tt·rd:.:y, but now finding that he is to be furthrr rldayLd I huve thought 
it weJ to writ.e now. I \\iii no dnuLt prompt'.v after m<Aing t!:em early 
ne11.t week send you a further rnmmunie,ttiun, giving more fully their 
rca:-um, for thi!:' attitude. 

Another point that they are anxiuus about is thi~: Prior to the 
mPrtings at which they recently attrnd::>d a r<'~olution wa,;; pa,sed, giving 
the general manugc.r leave of ab~enl'e, and appointing his ~on, who i~ the 
a"-;i~tant general managn, to be 1:ct:ng g<'n<•r,tl manager. My cii<'nt~ 
were anxiou-, that ut once some fre:"h blond ~hould be introduced intu the 
gC'neral management for tLe time being, and propo'3td to lrnve Mr. Adair, 
the Supc·rvi~or who made the Torontu in,:,peetion la:c-t year, acting assistant 
to the general manager. They were greatly <liuppointcd that the Board 
refused to do this, but this point will be referred to more fully, perhaps, 
in my next communication. 

As I must communicate with Mr. La"h on thP subje<'t, I truf-t you 
will approve of my sending-as I propose to Jo-a copy of this letter to 
him. My clients particularly wi-.:h to have Mr. La"h and Mr. Anglin 
fully under-;tand their position, and I may add that thry \\-ere Cf-pccially 
plea;:ed wh<'n at the recent merting", and upon their rnggestion, the 
.Blake-Lash firm was appointed i;:olidors for the Bank. It appears that 
t.he Board, though pre;::-ed b~r my cliPnt<; from time to time to tlo ~o, had 
never, before-at least in rPrent years-appointed a regu:ar solicitor for 
the Bank. 

Yours very truly, 
(Sgd.) JAMES FISHER." 

It is in that letter he says they were not content with the investigation of 
the Board as at prec;ent constituted. 

Thm No. 53 is another letter from Fisher to me, and again he says:~ 
"It will be wholly unsati:5factory to have an investigation made by 

the Board as at pre,:ent constituted." 
He goes on to say:-

"It may be, indeed, that Mr. Haney has-and my clients wouldi be 
pleased to know that he has-oversight to a large extent over the new 
business of the bank, which Mr, Lash states is 'only simple easy 
business.' " 
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Now I rome to my letter of February 21st which show~ the policy which I 
was pur1,;uing at thi'3 -.tage. It is :i, letter I addres1:,ed to Mr. Fi'-her, in which 
I said this:-

•"DEAR Sm,-1 have yours of the 18th in::;tant with reference to the 
above- The po:,ition I have taken with Mr. Lash is that I desire thr 
statement which I have asked for on the complaint lodged by you on 
behalf of the Western Directors. It does not appear to mr that I' would 
be justified in foregoing my requrst for such information on the ground 
that the Board is now in harmony. You make certain definite explicit 
rharges which I conreived it my duty to investigate. Whrn I receive 
the report in those matters from the Home Bank or Mr. Lash I shall 
have to determine the course proper for me to take. My duty of course 
lies to the public and in view of the ser:ou.,; charges which you made I 
feel.I rannot allow the matter to remain in abeyanre. At the same time 
it will and should be my policy to give the reorganized Board of Managr-

. ment every opportunity to place the administration upon a sound baf'-is 
provided that in my judgment this is pos5ible." 

They were going to reorganize th Board; they were going to rid of 
Jamn ]\fa1:,on; they had confidence 1n·Haney; and I said:-

"lt will and should be my policy to gi,·e the re-organized Board 
of Management every opportunity to plare the administration upon a 
sound basi,, provided that in my judgment this is possible." 

Now, if you will look at some of the preceding letters you "ill find it, was 
suggrc;terl. that I should not call for this information from the Board, because 
they were going to reorganize the Board, and I said, if you reorganize the Board 
my policy would be to give it every opportunity to place the administration 
upon a sound basis but I want the report, which I got, and which has been on 
the public files of the Department ever since 1916. 

I would call attention to Exhibit No .. 59. In exhibit 59 I asked Sydney 
Jones for a detailed statement showing advances, repuyments, and interest 
charges on the A. C. Frost Company account. I will just read the letter: 

"SYDNEY H- JoNEo, Esq., 
Trinity College, 

Toronto. 

"OTTAWA, FEBRUARY 24th, 1916. 

Re Home Ba,nk of Canada 

Dear Sir.-_Referring to my previou:5 letter requesting an investiga­
tion by you of certain accounts of the above Bank, I shall be glad if you 
will send me as soon as possible a detailed statement showing adYances, 
repayments, and interest charges on the A. C. Frost Company account. 
The. Wc,-:tern members of the Board have thought it desirable that I 
should obtain thi:5 information. Your prompt attention will oblige. 

Yours truly, 
(Sgd.) W. T. W" 

Then I come to. Exhibit No. 63, your lordship. Exhibit 63 is a very 
voluminous one, containing a full report from the Home Bank with regard 
to the account of Pellatt & Pellatt, the- Prudential arcount and the Frost Timber 
account. It is a very extensive and. voluminous report, as I have said, and it 
seemed to me, at that time, to be in it:i det:.iil corrrrt. It purported to be a 
history of these accounts, and I wrote Mr. Fisher a little later informing him 
that this had been received, and it seemed to be in full detail. That is in one 
of the letters here. 
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I may say to your lord:ahip that, a'l a financial man in Toronto, the Pellatt 
firm, so far as, I was aware, had a good bu,;iness and borrowed from many insti­
tutions, but the rollateral that they had in that account appeared to me to 
be rather unliquid. In addition to being unliquid it was too large,an amount, 
too large a loan, and that is the reason why I im,ii;;ted that that loan should be 
put on a better bnc:;is, that the interebt which was in arrears should be paid 
up, and the loan put in prore..c:s of reduction. 

At the bame time it did not occur to me that PeUatt & Company would 
not be rei;;ponsible for their engagement, ber~me, as I said, they had a good 
brokerage business and were e:-..tem,ive borrowers on rollateral, and I ha.cl a]y;o­
lutely no reabon to helieve that that firm was threatened with insolvency, but 
I did not like the loan because it waR unliquid and too large. 

Now, as having a bearing upon my frame of mind at that time, I notice 
from this correspondance, unless I have read this incorrectly, that on the 
Prudential Board were Colonel Burland and Farquhar Robertson. Tho:ae men 
are both good busine:as men, well-to-do men and good hu1-iness men. 

Now then, your lord,:hip, as I have -,aid, my policy was to give the re­
organized Board of management every opportunity to place the adminii-:tration 
upon a i-ound ba~is provided tliat, in my judgment, this is possible. 

There is another aspect of it that I de,-ire to draw to your lord,:hip's atten­
tion, becaut5e it is referred to in the petition, and is relevant to what I afterwards 
did. In l\Ir. La~h's letttr of March 4th, 1916, Exhibit 74 (Mr. Lash acting for 
the bank, not for me,--.aod I prove that letter, sir, as having been received by 
me), the lm,t paragraph re~ds as follows: 

"If the Bankers' A1-soriation were iuiked to interfere, my experience 
tells me that no matter what the pledge of confidence may be, and no 
matter how faithfully it may be kPpt by tho1-e giving it, yet the ,:ituation 
would become public property in a very short time, by the whisperings or 
talkings of others, including the bank's own staff. This would precipitate 
matters before we are ready to deal with them in the best interests of 
the public, and it is that which I am specially anxious to avoid.'' 

As a matter of fact, the petitioners here in · this cuse make that their 
argument. I draw your lordship's attention, in that connection, to what the 
petitioners say about the effect of an out.E:ide inve_,tigution. They say it would 
bring the bank down. 

\ 

Now, there is the letter of March 8th. 
Mr. LEE: What is the Exhibit number·? 
Sir THOMAS WHITE: Thi-, is to Z. A. Lash, it hac; not got a number. 
Mr~ LEE: What page? • 
Mr. McLAUGHLIN: Page 167. 
Sir THOMAS WHITE: I will read it, sir, it is marked "personal". 

"OTTAWA, March 8, 1916. 

Re Home Bank 

"Dear Mr. LASH,-! have yours of the 4th inbtant, and think it 
proper to defer action until after the 16th instant when I understand 
~fr. Haney's report will be received as to the British Columbia timber 
limits held in connection wjth the Frost account. It is altogether prob­
able that after that date I i:-hall foel it my duty to bring the bank's 
affairs to the attention of the association. They will then have befbre 
them the material with which I have been furnished and Mr. Haney's 
report, which they would no doubt de:aire to Eee before taking action. 

Yours very truly," 

I 

; 
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Sir THOMAS ,VHITE: Mr. Haney and Mr. Crerar had gone out We::;t to 
examine the timber limitti. I am speaking a little loudly for your benefit, Mr. 
McLaughlin. 

Mr. ~cLAliGHLIN: I am much obliged; I hear you quite well. 
Sir THOMAS WHITE: Then there is a letter dated March 9th from Fisher 

to myself: 

Sir THos. WHITE, 
~iinist'er of Finance, 

Ottawa, Ont. 

"WINNIPEG, March 9, 1916. 

Re Home Barik of Cana~a 

DEAR Sm,-Yo'ur letter of the 24th ult. come in due course, but 
absence from the city has preventRd my replying to it earlier. I quite 
realize the delicacy of the situation and how important it is to avoid a 
mi::;take in judgment one way or the othn. I can but repeat that my 
clients are entirely s:J.ti~fird that the matter is in good hands when 
MessrJ,. Lash & Anglin are now the solicitors of the Bank. 

As to the special information that my c~ients have touching the 
Frost account: it is not Ro much with respect to the amount of the 
account but as to the circumstances under which the advances were 
made. The information they have had .has not, in fact, been verified, 
although they are convinced of the truth of it, but the whole matter, I 
may say, is known to :Mr. Lash, to whom I am sending a copy of this 
letter." 

Sir THOMAS WHITE: Then I come, sir, to a letter of March 16th. 

Mr. LEE: Exhibit No. 78. 
Sir THOMAS WHITE: Yes. It is from Mr. Lash to myself, and Mr. Lash 

says: 
"MY DEAR Srn THOMAS,-The Board meeting of thr Home Bank 

wa.;; held to-day. I attended and explained the whole position, and asked 
for instructions upon the matters ,vhich are most threatening. l 

The Board said they would continue in seRsion until conclus10ns 
were reached. I said I would be av~ilable whenever they were ready. 
It i:,:; probable that thel Sittings will be continued to-morrow. 

I will communicate with you agajn to-morrow, and if neces.:;ary, I, 
or Mr. Anglin will go down and see you. 

I told the Board that I had given you an assurance that the position 
would not be materially changed pending the further discUl'>'lion with 
you, and they assented to that.'" , ' 

The point I am making is that La,-h Wi.l::' acting :or the bank, not for me. 

Now, Mr. Commis.;ioncr, came next in order the reorganization of the 
Board, as -;tatcd in Mr. Lash's letter. Here is what happened. On March 20. 
1916, I received the following per~onal letter from Mr. Z. A. La'3h-this is in 
Mr. Lash's handwriting, from t~1e Chatr.rn Laurier: 

Re Home Bank 4 

"My Dear Srn THo~r.\s:~As I said in my note of' 16th the Board 
met-they continued in sc-,sion on Friday. I had to go to New York 
Friday night and arranged that either I or :\fr. Anglin would ,:re you 
without delay and explain matters. I returned home yesterday morning 
and received a message from Mr. Crerar (a W''p'g diredor) ;,J.ying that 
he and Mr. Haney had arranged to' be in Ottawa to-day to see you and 
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asking me to be here. I a---umed that an appointment had bPBn made 
with you and I rame r!own h-:t night. To my ,-urpri"e I found that no 
appointment had bNn mad(' and that you would not br here till to-night. 
;'.1r. Haney told me of what tlw Board had drrided 1upon and aftn 
hearing him and his view-: re B.C. lumbrr, etc. I am in a much more 
hopeful frame of mind Ui:' to thr future of tht\ Bank. 

1. General l\b,on and hi;;: ;con will hav•e leave of ab~rncr till a bdtrr 
detailed knowlerfo;e of tho po::;ition is obtaimd. 

2. Mr. Haney was appointtrl Vire Prc-t. with the de far-t-0 position 
of Presid1,nt. He will make th,· affair,-, of the Bank th/) first rhurgc on 
hi:- time, till it is in a permanent po1:<ition one way or the other and will 
if nece:,rnry devot.e all his time: He will arrrpt no rrmunt•ration until 
it is :oeen that the B:mk t·an afford it anrl t!,en he will take what thP 
sharc>hold1•r9 may rh:cide .. 

3. l\fr. ;.\larnffi1~ tl think that is the l'pdlingl the Manager of the 
"\Yinnip"g Branch in whom l\1r. H'.lllE\Y and l\Ir. Crcrar have gre~it 
r·onficlern·,•, will t:Offil' to Toronto at once> (11r Ju-: hl'l'll wi1wl for) to a:-f'i-,t 
Mr. Haney in inY< -tigd.ing thc gcnl'ral position and i\Ir. Haney will 
employ ::;ueh out:;;ide a~~:st::tnrc, as may be rPrtuircrl. 

Mr. l\iac::tffic is nn olrl Bank M:rnni.:..,r anrl "a~ trained in the 
l\Jr.rchantf' Bk. and B.B.N.A. He has lwn1 with the Home Bank abuut 
7 year..; I think and mo,;t of the time in W'p'g. 

4. The Pcllatt ,w,·uritif•r, h:tY~ been t,pprovrd and IVill be !'Xt'cut.erl 
to-day. This will muke Iii" ar-c,rnnt quite :;:a1e I think. 

5. The Board desire :tn opportunity of going on with tbr bu1,ineb­
Ptrengthcning other ar-l'ounts and --traight<•nin~ out tunglrs and it wa'-' 
with that in. view that we nlme lwrc to-day in order to P,pLtin the whole 
po'3ition to you and to usk you to !!iW tlwm tLi::: opportunity, by refra ininP" 
for a while longer from a~king the Banker:; A:-f'ociation or other ouhide 
authority to interfrre. We wuuld "tny over t-0-morrow and t>xpbin thing;-; 
but unfortunately Mr. Crerar mu:-t be in Winnipeg on "\Vcdn<'f'duy and 
I mu:-t be in Toronto to-morrow. I would like l\Ir. Crerar to be pre~nt 
with me whPn I see you in order that he may :.i..;sure you, as lte ha~ 
assured me, that he i:; quite sati~fied now and that Mr. Haney has the 
full eonfidPn<·e of the WinnipP;.!; Direr-tors. His appointment a,; V.P. 
was unanimous at the Boatd mrct.ing, two of the three "\V'p'g Dirr!'tors 
being pre,-,ent,. I fct·l quite ,-,ati,.fipcJ my:;;elf that the public interest will 
be s,rrved by the opportunity a~kl'cl for being giYen anrl if you will kindly 
give u,, an appointment for :;:omc clay nrxt WPPk, towards the rnd of the 
Wl'<'k, we will eome here or meet you in Toront-0 and give full information 
and such undertakings, as you de:;;ir,e that the- general po"it;on ,vill not 
be changed t-0 the detriment of clepo~itor,-, de. 

F:1ithfully yours, 
(~gd.) Z. A. LA::,II." 

Now, then, there is :'.\Ir. Crerar's k·tkr of l\foreh 20, 1916. I want to say, 
your lorrbhip, thut I had entire confidL•nrc in Mr. Crer:ir and the "\Vt~::;t(,rn 
Dirrrtorf, berau,;e th1 y 1\ ere the partie~ who, through tlwir rount<el, had brought 
these matters to my att-Pntio11, thl'"•e three prineipal a,·rnunt "• and at that time 
I ha,l no knowlr9~e whatever, nor rnb:-c4uently, o; any other a,)ount-; tliat 
were wcr.k or required to be invc:;;tigateLl, only tl10..;e tllflce, and I think they 
referrer] to a Barnard loan, a smail amount whirh 'had brm elearcd up. But 
the point I dP~ire to make, in order that your lord:-hip may under:otand the 
attitude of mind I had at the time, becau-;e that wa-. important in determining 
the action which I took under the Bank Act where it was in my dii:;cretion to 
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call for an audit, or call for a statement from the auditor, or call for a statement 
from the Board, is that I had entire confidence in ~1r. Crerar and the We.ot€rn 
Director" who had raised the que~tion. (I 

I also want to :::ay that I had entirr confidence in Mr. Haney because thPy 
had C<Jnfidencc in him. The entire Board had unikd upon Mr. Haney a~ 
Presidt:nt, and I will give my views a litt'.e later, undPr oath, as to the opinioni;, 
tlmt i ent,ntaincd of those men, bcr"ame it is relevant to my state of miwl at 
that time, and has a bearing upon how I reached my deci.::'ion. 

~ow, thi:; is the letter from Mr. Crerar: 

Home Bank of Canada 
I 

"DEAR Srn,-You will have learned from Mr. Lash of our visit to 
Ottawn. to-day to dis,·u-, bank matters with you, and our failure to see 
you through your ab~en<·P from the city. You will also ha Ye learned 
of the change made at the recent mC'Pt;ng of t'.1e Board held in Toronto 

\ a few days ago, whneby the active' managc-mC'nt of affairs is plaecd in 
entirely new hands thruugh Mr. Ham·y taking the vire-Pre.'-idemy, and 
as,,uming direct executive control, with ::.\ Ir. ::.\Iachaffic, the 1fa nager in 
'\\':nnipPg, whom, for the time being at lNt~t, he is bringing to Toronu.> to 
a::::::ist him. By this arrangtment I feel quit(• certain that the knowledge 
and information conrrrning the po:::ition of affairs dc~irC'd by the Wl,-tun 
Members of the Board, and al:-o the changes they desired when thPy 
directPd thl·ir request to you, and which they saw no bop~ of sPcuring 
through the then existing managrmPnt, can now be satisfoC"torily obtuined 
without calling in out.;ide a::;sisbnce. In my opinion, the situation ha::: 
materially improvul within the past month, and, at this juncture with 
the changes in managrment recently made, it is bPtter to have the enquiry 
prorercl from within rather than from without. 

Owi'ng to the po:;-ibilitv of my being unable to attend a :;ugge;-;ted 
conference with you next week, I am giving this lct.tn to Mr. Lash so 
that he may plac•e it before you. I may add that Mr. Kennedy, with 
whom I have discm~crl the views herein Pxpre~ 0 cd, is in agreemrnt with 
tb,·m. l\'Ir. Persf'e, the other Western Director, is in the South, and so we 
have been unable to consult him. I frel, however, that wne he here he 
would be in agreement with us." 

Now, here is Mr. Crerar on behalf of the We:-:tcrn Directors telling me that 
he is satisfied with the reorganized Board, and they want an opportunity to go 
ahead-, and he docs not want an external audit. I must not rnggc;,t his motives, 
but I could easily undC'rstancl it mie;ht have very serious effects upon the ,bank, 
and, becauSP I am at a disadvantage hcrP, I a,:kcd counsel for the Governmertt 
to put in the1 resolution which was pa.;,acd at a meeting of the Home. Bank 
Board at which Mr. Crerar was pre,:ent, and Kennedy, in which they said it 
would be found that the capital of the bank was inta,·t. 

Mr. LAFLEUR: That is in, Sir Thomas. 
Sir THOMAS '\VHITE: Further, I a,:kcd for the report of Haney and Crerar 

that there would be no loss on the Wc3tern timber limit,, that they could be 
realized on in from three to five yc~us, to be put in. 

Mr. LAFLEt:R: That is also in Sir Thomas. 
~ir THOMAS ,vHITE: All riµ;ht, I am t·ontent. 
Xow, your lordship, the only other letter at thi:'- stage of the proeeedings, 

for 1916, is Mr. Haney's letter of June 14th, and that r!m,e~ thC' firs-t stage, sir, 
in this matter, as between the Home Bank and It.lie Department of Finance 
ari.;ing out of James Fisher'13 letter. 
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Haney's letter is dated June 14th, 1916, E:\.hihit 86, page 176. It j,.:; addres,;cd 
to m:r self, and I am going to read it, v;ith your prrmi,;,-ion. I will rome ba,·k 
to that, berausP I want it specially referred to: 

Home Bank of ranacla 

"Srn:-Rdnring to the kttPr of :'.\Iard1 ·23rd h,t from Mr.' Z. A. 
Lash to yoursrlf which also bear,; 'lny .-ignature in concurrence. Mr. 
La~h promi::,erl. that you would be kept inform,'d from time to time a~ to 
the progrr--;; being made. In the ab-Prn·c of :'.\I-. La,h from the city, this 
report may now be in order from mr. 

For convenience' sake the threP ac·rnunt~ regarding whil'h ~·ou u,ketl 
for special information may be l"tylrd, •·the Toronto matter", "the :New 
Orleans matter" and "the Briti,,h Columbia matter". 

In tl1c Toronto matter the adrlitioml ~rruritir-: mentioned in :'.\Ir. 
Lash's letter have now been put into ;.;hapl'; our cu,-tomrr i" paying 
interest in cash quarterly, and while much of thr debt may have to be 
carril'd until the termination of tlw war, it i~, in the opinion of tlw Board, 
reasonably certain that no los:o: will th·1-ruc to thr Bank. 

In the ~ew Orle~m,, matter, prog;rns-, ha,, bPen marl.c by obbining 
c011trol of an equity which I 1:111 ~ati-:fi.rd will yirld a sub,-tantial sum in 
reduchon of the debt, and, therefore, grcat'.y facilitate liquidation of the 
whole account. 

In the Brit;::;h Columbia matter, nrgotiation,-. mrntiourd by Mr. La.-h 
are still pern;l.ing; we h:1ve al::-o bern npproaehed by other purt,ics regard­
ing the largr;:t item, and prii'e,.; ment:orn ,i are eon~idrrnbly in C'Xce~s of 
the value plaecd upon it in our b0nk,. 

On May 26th and 27th a fu!' Board m<·eting 1va, hrld and was 
marked by complete harmony throughout; all doubtful arrounts were 
disrusl:'ed, and appropriation, for lo,;"1'~ madP; t},,i agg;rqi;ate of thc~e 
appropriations, together with a ,·on,-idcrnb!e sum for good measure, is 
being transfrrrrd from Rest :.il'eount. A tk·finitc policy was derid1·d upon 
which will substantially increa,e our rnrr,;ng pmwr. 

In eonrlmion, I would add that mul'h ha,- hren done to inrrea"e the 
proportion of immediately avai:1, he a•-'< t,; merrantile arlvanrPs ha,·e 
been got in and quite heavy invr~tment8 madr in (-tovernmrnt bond-; and 
this policy will rontinue." 

Now, that is from Mr. Haney, Prr,idmt of t!1e Bank, in whom they al: had 
<'onfidrnce, and certainly in whom I had confitk·nce. 

Then I rk•~ire to 1•all your lord,:hip's attPntion to 11r. La,;h's !cttcr of Mareh 
23rd, 1916, to which Mr. Haney referred. 

The SECRETARY: Exhibit 83. 
Sir THOM\<:\ W HI'IT:: It is a long letter, )·our lord,hip, anrl I rlu not propo,-r 

to read it because it is before you, and yuur lorrb-hip will rrad :t, but it dt:d:! 
with these account, and ,-hows the improved c-ondition of the bank. For instance, 
it ':lays: 

"With reforence to the third account regarding whirh you eallerl for 
a :5peeial return, additional securitic-; have bl•en ohtairn·,l, and t.he Board 
now frels that no loss will be :;u,-t.:,ined by the bank on this arrount." 

It also sav::i: 
"Oiie of the first things whirh Mr. Hanty ,lid aft-t,r hr w,H appointed 

Director, was to go to :New Orlran,.: with a view of investigating the 
position down thrre,, in order to form an opinion as to thr f'l•curity held 
by the Bank in connection with one of thl' arc-ountR rt>garding whieh you 
called for spl3cial returns. Mr. Haney formed an opinion that by proper 
management, a substantial part of the Yalue of that security could be 
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1miintained, but the situation is not an ra:-y one and requires careful and 
tactful treatment. In addition to going to ~ew Orlean,-, Mr. Haney went 
to Briti-,h Columbia, accompanied by Mr. Crerar, for the purpose of 
investigating the securities held by the Bank in connection with another 
of the accounts regarding which you called for the special returns. Mr. 
Haney and Mr. Crerar both came to the conclu,-ion that the securitv held 
by the Bank showed a fair margin in rnlue over the amount of the Bank's 
claim. Here again, the po,;ition i~ eomplicatcd, and require-, careful and 
tactful management in order that the values of the ,-e,·urities may be 
realized without sacrifice." 

I am going to make another suggr:otion, if I may, to counsel for the Gov­
ernment, becau:::e, as I say, I am at a disadvantage, that they ascertain what 
timbrr price::; were in 1916 to 1918 in British Columbia, or any :other place, and 
the demand for timber. There was the demand, grrat or E'mall, the British 
GoYernment and all the Governments paying almost fabulous prices for timber 
in the We;..t. That should go in before your lordship because, a,; I have said, 
in ,-ome of these letters, it wa,, a question of security in connection with those 
thn-'e account.-:. 

A,- I mid, sir, that !etter of :i\fr. Haney's of June 14th, 1916, closes one 
-,;tage. 

I had confidence in the reorganized Bm,rd, and believed they were sincerrly 
d, ,irou,,; and hopeful of placing thl\ bank on a 1'ound basis, that is, if lo,<;sr~ 
occurred on one or more of the thrre accounts they would be marginal lo;,se;:, 
and not effect thr Rolvency of the bank. That was my opinion, sir. I had 
ab:::olutely no knowledge of any difficulty with any account other than· tho~e 
set out in the Fisher letter. 

I want to refer to the prrsonnel of the Board, because I want to give 
rea;;:ons for my confidence. I am giving you my evidence, and it is relevant for 
the rca,on that it has a bearing upon the que~tion of my confidence, as to why 
I 'did not get the Bankers' Association to go in, that was in my discretion a'5 
to whether I should do that or not, and I want to tell your lordship how I 
regarded thu»e men, if your lordship thinks that that is right. 

His LORDl;JHIP: Certainly. 
::,ir THOMAS WHITE: Mr. Haney was known to me as a prominent con­

tractor, reputed to be a man of good means. He had good standing in Toronto; 
he was on the Board of the Toronto General Hospital with my:;elf, and I wa~ 
murh impre'"'"l'd by !ii~ ability and earne,:tncss in his duties. "'.vlr. Lash had 
,·onfidf>n<·c in him and exprn,sed it to me more than once. So had the Western 
Dirrctors, they all agreed upon him in ,:;ubstitution· for MaFon. 

And I may ,,ay that .JamP:- Mason was a prominent citizen of Toronto, 
wa- in good financial credit, apparently, very greatly respected in Roman 
Catholic Churrh circle-,, and he wm, a Senator of Canada. 

A:-< to .J. Cooper Mason I might a,, well de'11 ":ith him as 2\/Ianager at that 
time. I doubt if I had ever spoken to J. Cooper M:;tson in my life. He was 
a :,;on of James 1\1ason whom I had known, and had a good reeord in the South 
African war. I do not think I ever saw Mason in my life more than two or 
tlirre time:,;. On those two or three ocra:,,ions it was at meetings of the Banker,,' 
A~~ociation which I had con~rned at Ottawa during the war, and he came down 
as Manager of the bank. I certainly knew absolutely nothing against him, and 
do"·n to the day of his death I knew nothing against him. Nor do I know any­
thing to thi~ moment against Mr. Haney, that is, of my personal knowledgr. 

In Mr. Crerar I had implicit confidence, and in his co-directors from thr 
WP>t-1 have .said this already-beeau~e they had brought tho:;e accountj to 
my ~ttcntion. They certainly appeared to be acting honestly. 
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:'.\fr. LAFLITR: Wlwre are you rruding from, Sir Thomas? 
Sir THOMA'l WHITE: I am giving my evidenre. 
1:Ir. LAFLEUR: I thought you were reading a lcttn. 
Sir THOMAS "\VHni,;: On account of having no rnun~el to advise me, 1Ir. 

Lafleur, I have before me whd a roun-rl ,rnuld h:we with his witne~-e". 
J\Ir. LAFU:l R: I am quitr ~:itisfierl, .~ir TLomas. I thought you were rl'ad­

ing a letter and wanted to refer to it. 
8ir THOMAS WHITE: In refraining from bringing t.he mat,ter to thr att.t•n­

tion of the Bankrr,-' A;;:sociation I wr,~ influenrcd by thn·e thing:;: 
(1) The harmonizing of the Bunrri and it-.; :--tatcmrnt;: a~ to the po'-ition 

:1wI pro,:pertc; of the bank. 
That wa,: quite influential with me. Thrv were all t.intent and all a~rei->d 

on Mr. Haney, an,i wanted. to rro alw:.1rl. Thr Wr,tern Directors had pr'lc­
,111 ally withdrawn thrir later request. 

(2) Crerar':i lcttrr on behalf of Wr:stern Directors. 
That i::: the i'econd influence on my mind, a dirert influence. 
(3) RelurLmce to takr art.ion which mil!ht bring down a bank which 

,rhilr it might have to face a loss on one or more acrounts appeared to b,, 
:-ulwnt and to have it,; capital intart. bu•:im" its Boatd had said that, it wou'.d 
lw f•mnd that its capital wus intact, in thrir opinion. • . 

There might be s0me marginal lc,sae,;; on arrount..:, but with an hc,nP~t 
Board, as apparently they were, rrorganizei1, only marginal lo,:.,;.e,;, ihere was no 
rea 0 on for clo-ing up a bank in my opinion. 

Mr. Ln,: You are only rd erring up to 1916? 
8ir THOMAS WHITE: I will grt over it DU, I have it here. 
Now I come to the 1L,,·haffie letter datld August 29th, 1918. 
:1,Ir. LAFLUR: If it i;; not interrupting you I would like to ~mow if the 

rl'port you referred to i, that on page 182, Exhibit No. 96. the report and 
re,-nlu' ion of the Dire1-tor::i . 

. ~ir THOMA::l WHITE: YP,- that ;F Exhibit No. 96. 
::\Ir. LAFLUR: You u:-kt'd m1· to fi 1e that, I :'aid it W:l" alr():tdy in, I am point­

ing out where. 
That report of \fo,-,-.,r:5. HnnC'y and Crerur I will al~,, luok for, and if it i-- not 

in I will put it in. 
:::lir THO:.\IA:- "\VHITE: Anrl. the rc:e:olution of the Board at which l\Ie;-:;:r,:. 

CrPrar and Kennedy wrre pm;Pnt ,rating that u~ a re;-;ult of their inH,tigatiun 
in their opinion the rapital of tl1e hank would bP intact. I mentionPd that the 
other day and your Lonl,-hip mid you would Ponsidrr whether that ~hould ~o in 
or not. 

H1.:; LORDSHIP: YP,-., it wa-- left in abeyan<'e. 
~ir Tuo:.-.IAR \YHITE: Now the Machaffie lrt.tn of Augutit 29th, 1918, mttrked 

"n·gister", Exhibit No. 88. 

"Re/lifer. 

Hon. ::;ir THO:\fAS WHITE, 
Mini,-tcr of Finance, 

Otthwa. 

OAKYILLE, ONT., Au~u,-t 29. 1918. 

Home !3ank of Canada. 
DFAR :--rn THo:.-.rAs,~Refcrring to the report of James }'i:-hrr, KC., 

• to you on FC'bruary, 1916, and to a converrntion with the writer in 
DecPmbf>r of that year; at that time there ~eemed some hope of selling a 
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sub::,tantial portion of the British Columbia timber held in the A. C. 
Frost account to a pulp company, this sale however did not materialize; 
this situation therefore is that the dividends -for the years ending May, 
1916, and May, 1917 were ba::;ed on the addition of interest to doubtful 
accounts-in £>ach year some 30 per cent more than amount of dividend 
being added to the Frost aecount alone-dividend for year ended May, 
1918 was based on the anticipation of a pr&fit in a British Columbia 
shipbuilding enterpri:;:e, in which the Bank is to receive 25 per cent of 
the profit, the balance being divided between M. J. Haney, President, 
C. A. Barna~d, a Dirctor, and F. J. M. Stewart, a personal friend of Mr. 
Haney's. In tl1is connection a considerable amount of the bank's funds is 
locked up. 

In view of the foregoing it seems evident that the actual cash dis­
bur'ied in dividends during the three years under review was furnished by 
t: 1r inrrea~e in deposits, and that the aggreii;ate risk of the public is much 
~rr _tter to-day than when :Mr. Fisher ap~roached you. 

The total amount written up in the Frost arcount over the purchase 
price o• the timber, if added to the amount of capital stock carried by 
the bank, would account for the entire capital. . 

:--eetion 153 0£ the Bank Act is of l'Our~e violated, Head Office officials 
un" ;'lmg to ~1are the guilt are obliged to ~et out; since matters were 
nportr ~ to you the following ii;rntlemen have had to resign: 

1Ir. KPnMdy, Tw{~nto l\fanager. 
Mr. Adair, Supu .... 1sor. 
J\Tr. Hase, Supervi,:or. 
Mr. Machaffie, A~-.~ist.mt to President. 
The shareholders' uuditor, who wa-, the late Col. Mason's selection, 

is not, I am told a cha ered accountant, nor a trained banker; the posi­
tion of important mat-:.e' s is conLealed from the Bo:1rd, and consequently 
the public are der::1ed that measure of protection contemplated by 
Parliament at Section fi of the Bank Act. 

Transctctions in wl ich Mr. Haney and his friends have a personal 
interest were becomin , ra~her frequent, and in some cases the outcome 
was disastrous to the x1nk. . 

This lack· of disil/1terestedneF'i on the part of l\Ir. Haney, coµpled 
with the fact that mLeh important information is wiM1held from Mr­
La.:'h, ,;cems to ju..;tify the conclusion that the arrangement made by you 
with these two p:entle .1rn doe.; not afford the public an adequate measure 

of i>rotcction. 
All of whieh is r $pcctfully wbmitted, I am, 

\ Yours faithfully, 
\ (Sgd.) w. N. MACHAFFIE, 

Late As:siJtant to President." 
• t 

Sm THOMAS Wmn.: I acknowk·dged that letter on Sept. 4th. I point 

out to your lordbhip that it: pre. vious letters I had ::u,ked assurance from Mr. 
Lash that interest would n t be taken into profits. Your lord~hip will recall 
those earlier letters, it is not m'cesrnry I think for me to specially refer to 
them now. I at once took up that letter and again followed the practice of 
the Department and scctiot 113 of the Bank· Act, and asked the Board for a 
reply to that letter. I may my to y_our lordship,-and I think this is evidence, 
because the frame of mind i-s again import::mt,-these letters are important but 
Ministers more or less freCJiluently receive letters of such a nature from officials, 
and as far as my practire went, and section 113 of the Bank Act gives the 
power, you call on the Board of Directors of the bank for an answer, because . ' 

i • 

.. 
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in nine cases out of ten there is some personal di'lsension involved, and the 
thing is cleared up. However, I regarded this as a very important letter. I 
wrote Mr. Lash this: 

OTTAWA, September 4, 1918. 

Re Home Bank 
"DEAR MR. LAsH,-1 enclose herewith copy of a letter which I have 

received from Mr. Machaffie, late Assistant to the President of the 
above Bank. I shall be glad if you will take the matter up with the 
Board of Directors and have a report prepared dealing with the several 

, charges made. I rr~ard the matter as of the utmost public importance, 
and it is my intention to have a through investigation made through the 
Bankers' A,:sociation or otherwise. Before taking this step, however, I 
wi"h to have a reply from Mr. Haney and his Board. 

., 

Yours faithfully. 
Z. A. LASH E;,q., K.G, 

Bank of Commerce Building, 
Toronto. 

Then follows $Orne correspondence in which there ,"vm, delay. ~Iy recollec­
tion is that I was away on the Victory Loan ·of 1918, I starttd th campaign 
in Winnipeg and went to the Coast and was away a considerable time so there· 
was some delay in getting the answer. I do not th~k it is nece ... ~ary to read all 
these intermediate letters, I come directly to Exhih,t No. 96 whirh is the reply 
of the Board, with your permission I will read thr.t because I reii:ard that ai:; a 
very important letter. ; , 

"THE HOME BANK OF C-\'l"ADA, 1· 

Office of the General l\famtgcr. 
T OR011.To, October 29, 1918. 

:Mr. Haney submitted tu the meeting\ a 'r< port to the Minister of 
Finance, to be sent to the Mini,-t~·r on bPhull of the Board, and this report 
after considrration and amer:dment wa-; umanimou,;ly adopted by the 
Board in the form following, and the PreR\?ent w~ aut,horized and in­
,tructed tie forward copy of thi-, rl'port to l\{,i'.r. Lu"h, with instructions to 
l1ave :-ame forwarded to the :'.\1ini:-ter. 

RF,PORT 

I 

The Director,; of the Home Bank of , anada have had under con­
,-ideration a lct..ter which the Honourable the ini:,:ter of Finan<·P wrnte to 
)fr. Z. A. Laf-h, KC., the Bank's Coun~d, ('n< lol'ing copy .of a letter d4~d 
August 29, 1918, from W. A :'.\1arhaflip to the .:\linister of Finance, ~n 
whi~·h certain statement:=: a"(' made ,vith reference to ~ome of the B.ank'~" 
affa1r:-. 1 

The Mini:-trr of Finunee in hii' lcttrr to :Vtr. L. a-!h a:-b that the mutter 
may be taken up with the ~oard of Din'<' ors and a rPport prepared 
dealing with the ,wveral eh:11 ge,:; made. Th ' Minister add.;;, "It is my 1 intPntion to have a thorouirh inv1•,-tigation ade through the Bankers' , 
Association or oth(•nvi-;e; b-Uore taking this sttp, however, I wish to have ~ 
a reply from Mr. Harn,y and his Board." • 

Owing to the absence of Mr. Haney, Pre ·ident of the Bank, and to 
Mr. La-ih's absence and other rn~agement~, t,1P dealing with the matter 
by the Board ha-, bePn delavLCI. .:\Ir. Lu:-h, how1:::ver, informed the Minister 
of Finance of the reason8 for the delay. 

• 
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The Board feeb that no good purpose would be served by entering 

into Mr. Machaffie's rea:,ons for interfering; in this Bank's affairs. The 

papers and correspondence with, and relating to Mr. Machaffie, and to 

the claims which he made against the Bank because he was not appointed 

General Manager a-i he expected to be, are open for the inspection of the 

Minister, should he wish to see them. They will probably afford the 

reason for Mr. Machaffie's pre;aent action which the Board thinks is not 

impartial or actuated by consideration for the public intere::;t-,. 

As the ~finister of Finance seems to have placed more reliance upon 

Mr. Machaffie's letter and r,tat.cments than the Board thinks they are 

worthy of, and to remove the wrong impression which that letter has 

evidently created, and on account of the importance of the matter, the 

Board feel that a reference to the position of the Bank ai directed and 

managed two and a half years ago, and to it-s present position, is call<>d for. 

In the early part of 1916, certain representations upon the position 

of the Bank had been made to the Minister of Finance, and he expressed 

at .that time the intention tc have an investigation made through the 

Bankers' As:--cciation or otherwi,se. 
Mr. Haney, now President of the Bank, had joined the Board of 

Directors shortly before these representations had been made. On his 

suggestion the then Board retained Mr. Z. A. Lash, K.C., as Counsel, and 

appointed the firm of Blake, Lash, Anglin & Cassels as Solicitors. 
Owing to the disturbed condition of business and finances in Canada 

twO' and a half years ago, the Board was of opinion that any investigation 

.into the affairs of the Bank by the Minister of Finance,. or by the Cana­

dian Bankers' Association, would be misunderstood, would cause a run 

upon the Bank, and would compel it to close its doors, with all the injurious 

_ consequences .which would n•sult therefrom, not only to the Bank it.self 

but to its customers and to the public interests. The Board did n9t then, 

and does not now fear the fullest invest-igation, but they do fear the con­

::;equence to the Bank, its cu:otomers and the publil', which. would result 

from an inve::;tigation orden·d by the Mini-,t.cr through the Bankers' 

Association or otherwise. 1 

The Board recogniz<>d two and a half years ago, and now recognizes, 

the responsibility placed upon the-Minister of Finant"e, with respect to the 

Banking Sy,-t~n of Canada, [,nd if, after full consideration and hearing 

the representations of the Bank, the ~Iini,;t<>r should conclude that, 

notwithstanding the consequences referred to, he is called upon in the 

public intere::it,, to order an inve:,:tigation, the Board, would, of •course, 

submit and afford all asc:istanc·e pos::-ible. 
Early in 1916 Mr. Haney and Mr. Lash ·had an interview with the 

~linistcr of Finance, explained to him the then po::;ition of the Bank, 

referred to the eomPqueners of an inYestigation at the instance of the 

~finister and explained to him the intentions of the Board with re,:;peet 

to the future control and management of the Bank. Mr. Haney stated 

that it was his intention to consult with Mr. Lash upon all important 

mattrrs relating to the Bank's affairs before taking action thereon. Mr. 

Haney also ,:tated his ronvietion that if the Bank were allowed to go on 

undi;.turbed by the public distrust which would inevitably remit from an 

offi1·ial invei-tigation, the making of ,vhich could not be withheld from the 

public, the matters forming the subject of the repre>"entations to the 

Minister, would and could be worked out and put into a position which 

would be entirely satisfactory to the Minister and that he would devote • 

hi:i best energies and his time to the accomplishment of that object. The 

Minister of Finance said that, on the representations made to him, and 
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in view of Mr. Haney'R promise, he would not then order an inve;:,tigation 
which might lwYe the ron,-rqupm·e::; referr('d to, and he would rely upon 
~Ir. Haney and Mr. Lash krrping him informed of any changes in the 
Bank's position which would rall for. a .. tion on his part. That the Min­
i,-,ter ha-: been justifird in Iii,; po~it.ion, and that Mr. Haney's promises 
have bPrn fully kept, will be made apparent by the statement which 
followB:-

The account~ whirh gave the Mini,ter of Finance conrern two and a 
half yrar" ago were:--

( 1) A brg(' account held at th!' '\Yinniprg office. 
(2) A large account held at the Toronto office. 
(3) A lurge a,·rnunt, the security for which was timber lan<ls and 

limits in British Columbia,. 
( 4) A large a1·e0unt hl·ld d the Toronto office in connection with 

certain undertaking,; in New Orleau-;. 
The Bo:trd of Director:: !use gone ('urefuily into di the Bank's affair:;;; 

Cummitter"l of the Bo.'1rd vi"ited tlrn ph.1•f,, where the interests of the Bank 
wrrP !,!n•·1t,_•~t, and per~onn lly madr thern,-,dn:,; familiar with the positions. 
Mr. HanPy and Mr. Barn.trd went to New Orleans and ohtained full 
information of th ,-ituarion Owrn, and came to tlie conclu~ion::- a'l to the 
w.ty in which it ,hould be treated. :\Ir. Haney WPnt to Manitoba and to 
Briti,-,h C. ,lumbia. In the latter pface thP timber land,- and limit:-, in which 
the Bank i,- intnc-ted, were rax·1mincd and information rf,-pPrting them 
and tbe general ('unditiorn, in the Province was obtairH'd. ' 

Account No. 1 h ts heen fully liquidatr,l 
~e!'uriiv for account Nu. 2 was tak<·n and in the opinion of the 

Director:-- tLe balance thereof is now fully ~<·curi,d. The arrount has bern 
reduced by :,284,091.27 of capital and all interest has been paid. 

\\'jth reforcnrce to arrount Ko. 3, with the information obtained in 
British Columbia the Ruard's judgment was that th<'fe was ample f-ecurity 
in the timhcr lane!,; and limit-: for the c·laims of the Bank, and sirn·e that 
time the nd11c of the se,·urity has increased. The selling prire of log" in 
Briti"h Columbia ( confirmed by a<'tual transad:ons) have been as 
follows:- · 

In' 1916-$ 8.85 per thow-rmd feet. 
In 1917-$12.12 per thuurnnd feet. 
In 1918-$17.00 per thousand fppt_ 

~ir THO:'.lfA'\ \VmTE: That is ,vhat I wishl'd l\Ir. Lafl<·ur to get Bome evidence 
on if he think,-, it worth while, about thP dl'mnn<l fnr timbc•r in 1918. 

1Ir. 1\lcLAl'GHLIN: It doc:i not f-ay anything about the co::it of operation. 
Sir THOMAS '\YHITE: '\Vell do not misundn-,ti; nd me, all I "ant i::i the truth. 

The truth ~hall rrittke you free, e\'lm although you are a counsel. 
~prw·e is now bring cut for the Imprrial :.\Iuniti0n,- Board, fr0m one 

part of thPfc limits, at a pril'() nPtting ~6.00 per thou,-anr! for :'.';umbPr One, 
and ~2.50 per thou--;1nd for );umber Two. This spruce was previously 
valued at from 50 <·Pnb to Sl.50 per thou,,.and. One of the limits contain­
ing from two hundrrd millio11 to three hundred million feet of Douglas Fir, 
a,; well a:, tie timber, c:tr., is ~ituar.l'li on Sooke Lake, seventeen mile-, from 
Victoria. A brand1 of the Canadian Northern Railway which ha-; been 
graded, and on whirh ruils are now being laid, passe,; through this limit. 
An offer ha:,; lately been rt>r·cind to purchas~one large section. 

The Dirrcto~ feel confident that no loss will be sustained by the 
Bank in l'Onnrrt.ion with the arcount srrured by these limit.c::. 
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Sir THOMAS WHITE: I pointed out to your lonbhip that 1\1Pssrs. Haney and 
Crerar had report.Pd two years beforl' that there ,vould be no loss. 

With reference to Account ~o. 4, the situation in New Orlt•ans ·was 
very carefully con,;idered and fully di,;cu;;sed with the Bank',, Cuunsel 
and Solicitor::;, and upon their advice, based upon the business judgment 
and views of the DirPrtors who went down to New Orleans, the whole 
situation was organized upon a new ba:,is. An efficient management was 
in'ltalled, the undertaking put into good repair an,d condition. Mr. Barnard, 
one of the Directors, has pc1 :;onally p.iven much time and attention to 
this matter, and has frequently vi:,:;ited New Orleans in connection with 
it. The results have been satisfactory. The net operating profit which, 
for the first twelYe months ending December 31st, 1916 amounted to 
$27,319.34, now amounts to more than $7,000.00 monthly, the net income· 
from operation for the month of July 1918 was $7,500.000. The gross 
revenue for ScpkmbPr 1916 wa,- $11,349.03; for September 1917 it was 
$14,936.75; and for ::--epambe1 1918 it was $18,094.86. 

The in('rease and improvement in the po,oition thus :;hown has not 
rn-ult.f,d from abnormal causes, but is the result of the improved condi­
tion of the properti<•,;, the careful mana~cment and the general advance 
in bu-,.inp,--, conditions which the Board feel;,; sure will be continued. The 
~l•euriti1,; held by the Bank have been gre~tly strengthened and improved, 
and the Bo.ird is confi,il'nt tliat no loss will result to the Bank in con­
nection with this account. 

The inference to be drawn from Mr. 11achaffic'f, statements with 
rrference to diYidendR paid by the Bank ~eemR to be that tlH'se dividends 
\\Pre paid out of capital, and not out of Profits. This statement, or 
inference, is unfounrlerl. No dividPnds have been paid out of capital, 
and the profitg of the Bank, a'ctually earned, have been amply rnfficient • 
to warrant the payment of the dividend:, which have been declared. 

For the same reason which made the Board feel that an inve::;tigation 
into the affairs of the Bank by the Mini:oter of Finance or by the Can­
adian Banker,;' As"ociation would be misundcr,-tood and would cause a 
run upon the Bank, the Board felt that great responsibility devolved upon 
tlwm with reference to payment or withholding of a dividend upon the 
Capital Stoek. ' 

After the most careful consider:.ition, the conclusion was reached 
that it would be greatly in the interef'tb of the Bank and enable the 
Board to rarry out its determination to make the Bank succf'Rsful, if the 
dividPncl, whi.ch for years has been paid upon the Stork, were continued, 
provided that it could be continued lawfully and without breach of any 
of the provisions •of the Bank Act. 

On each orcasion when the declaration of a dividend was di~cussed, 
careful consideration was !!;iven to the question of the profits of the Bank, 
and, aftPr being satisfied that sufficient profit'l were on hand, the dividend 
was declared and paid. 

The net profit" for 1"917 were. . . . $217,059 57 
The dividl'nd for 1917 was.. . . 97,327 06 
The net profits for 1918 were.. . . 228,963 19 
The dividend for 191~ wa,;.. . . . . 97,362 40 

No unpaid interest upon account No. 3 or other inactive accounts 
was credited to profits since the 31st May, 1917, the end of the Bank's 
fiscal year 1916-17. 

The statement-; made by Mr. Machaffie with referf'nce to what he 
rails the British Columbia Shipbuilding enterprise, in which he says a 
considerable amount of the Bank's funds is locked up, are unfounded. 
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The Bank made eertain advance.;; in 1917 to Mr. J. F. M. Stl·wart, rol­
laterally secured at all times by good security. The. transartion was 
one of ordinary banking businrss. Mr. Stewart alone was quite respon­
sible for the advance. The indebtedness was liquidated in full prior to 
December 31, 1917. The tran.,,action w:.i,; a profitable one to the Bank. 
The papers and 31ccounts connected with it are oprn to the inspection 
of the Minister at any time. 

Mr. Machaffie's statement that Sel'tion 153 of the Bank Act has been, 
or is being violated, is untrue, and his insinuation that he and three other 
officials, whom he names, re:;igned from the service of the Bank brcause 
tlwv were unwilling to share the p::uilt, and others not named were 
"obligrd to get out" or to resign because they were "unwilling to share 
the guilt" is untrue. Mr. Machaffie was quite willing to remain in the 
srrvil'e of the Bank but the Board did not feel jm,tified in retaining 
him, or appointing him to the position to which he aspired. 

Change:, in the staff are comtantly bl,_ing made by every Bank and 
institution, and the changes. in the. staff ~ this Bank, brought about by 
the action of the Board, whether by rdusing reque:ots for a-1.vancement 
or otherwi,l·, were brought about entirely to improve the service and 
not for the sinister rrason iminuated by Mr. Machaffie, or for any other 
improper reason. 

Mr. Maehaffie sav,; that he is told that the Shareholder,-' Auditor ' 
is not a Chartered Accountant nor a trained banker. This gentleman is 
a, man of the highe;;t reputation and ability. For the pa~t :;Pventeen 
years he has been, and still is, Bursar of Trinity College, and auditor 
for other institutions. His name is included in the li-t5t of person., selected 
by the General Managers of Banks under Section 56 of the Bank Act, 
deemed by them to be competent 11nd eligible to be appointed auditor 
under the provisions of the Act, and he was not disapproved of by the 
Mini$tPr under the provisions of the Act. He wM duly appointed by 
the shareholders at the Annual Meeting. N"o information required by him 
in puri,Uance of his duties as shareholders' auditor ha,: ever bten with­
held, and he has been most c·areful and even exacting in obtaining 
information for the purpo;;;es of his audit. 

The statement by Mr. Marhaffie, that the position of important 
matter,; is coneealed from the Board is untrue. No matters have ever 
been concealPd from the Dirl:'ctor-; and all advanee:a of over $5,000 have 
bten reported t9 and di,;cussed by them. 

Mr. ~1achaffie's ~tat-ement, that the transactions in which Mr. Hanry 
and his friends have a prr:;onal intrm-t wPre beeoi;ning rather frequent, 
and that in ,ome <':t"l:'" the outcome was disa,-trol,ls to the Bank, is untrue. 

Mr. :Machaffie's statement, that murh important information is 
withheld from ~Ir. La,h, i:; untrue. All important mattl>rs have been 
di:at•uf',ed by Mr. Haney with Mr. Lash as Coun::-cl for thr Bank, and 
nothing; has been done contrary to Mr. Lash's advice or opinion,-. 

The Board of Directors w,,,ure the Mini«tcr tlrnt the po;;ition of the 
Bank ha-, been stctidily growing strongn. The management is effiC"ient 
and satiRfactory, and the busine;:;.;; of the bank is prugrc~,-ing in a very 
safr,factory manner. 

{ 

The following will show its growth:-
On 3h:t May, 1916, the total depo:::ib 

of the Bank, not including Domin­
ion Go,·ernment depo::;its, amount-
ed to .................... $10,133,785 00 

The deposits on 31st May, 1918, were 15,682,750 00 

I 

I 
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J'he gold and legal tender notes on 31st 
May, 1916, amounted to.. . . . . . . 2,816,573 00 

On 31st May, 1918, they amounted to 3,252,464 00 
The liquid as:5ets on 31:,;t May, 1916, 

amounted to. . . . . . . . . . . . ~. 6,773,797 00 
On 31st May, 1918, they amoun'ted to 11,073,182 00 
The total assettl on 31st May, 1916, 

were .............. ' .. "' .. 
On .31st May, 1918, they were ..... . 

15,562,032 00 
23,675,773 oo· 
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The following· gentlemen have ·been put on 
last two and a half years:-

the Board during the 

Mr. C. A. Barnard, K.C., of Montreal, wa-; clrcted to the Board • 
on account of his accurate knowledge of the New Orlean:,; Railway 
situation, and because he undertook to giYe his individual utt,ention to 
it. In additiun, he ha-; been of material a;;sistance through his connec­
tion wit,h various lar11:e business interests in Canada. 

Mr. R. P. Gough,' President of the Sellers-Gough Fur Company, was 
a,;ked to join the Board to assist and advise the Bank on various com­
mercial matters. His po:,;ition as a bu<iiness man in Canada is well 
known. He has devoted much pyrsonal time to the affairs of the Bank, 
and has been of great assistance. 

Mr. Ambrose O'Brien, Managrr of M .. J. O'Brien Company Limited, 
was asked to join the Board because he was a young and .active man 
whose business interests are closely associated with the development now 
being carried on in Canada. He has been, and will continue to be, of 
great service to the Bank. 

Mr. H. J. Daly. Vice President of the National Cash Register Com­
pany, and General Manager for Canada, was elected a Director in order 
that the Bank miglit receive the benefit of hi-, great experience in sy-;tem, 
his knowledge as a business expert and successful manufacturer. His 
appointment has been very beneficial to the Bank. 

As Senator Macdonell's 0ther engagements, through his Parliamentary 
and other duties, and the state of his health, prevented him from giving 
much time to the Bank's int.crests, Mr. S. Casey Wood, of the firm of 
Rowell, Reid, Wood & Wright, was asked to join the Board so that the 
legal aspects of matters rnming before the Board might be properly 
guided and di-;cu::a~ed. The wisdom of selecting Mr. Wood has been 
fully justified. 

(Sgd.) M. J. HANEY, 
Prcsidfmt." 

8ir THOMAS WH1n:: Now your lord~hip I desire to testity and sweat that 
I hclien-d that representation made on behalf of the Board of Directors, said 
to be a unanimou::; report of the Board, many of .whom I knew personally. 

In order that I may rnpplement what I s:i,id with regard to the members 
of the Board in 1916, I wish to say something about the:,;c men very briefly, 
that is my knowledge of them. 

:'.\Ir. Cough was a well known businei'« man in the city of Toronto, highly 
rc:e;prcted, a Roman Catholic, I had never any knowkrlge, and have not yet, of 
anything in any way to the di!"rredit of Mr. Gough. ~ was ,a man of good 
standing, later on he berame Vice-Prc,:ident I believe of the National Rail­
way,:, he was also a man who "tood high in the Church, I understood that he 
ha~ been ronnrrt~d with the 1Knigh+s of Columbus, Pre:;ident or brad of it. 

Mr. O'Brien I do not know but I knew his firm well, J. O'Brien, Limited. 
they are very reputable· people. · 
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Mr. H. J. Daly, I may havP ,:een him at sume time, I do not ret'olle1·t, he 
wn,- in Ottawa here, I knew him by repute as a very artive buf:ine,.:~ man, he 
did ,.:0me work during the war here, "'Orne reorganization work, he wa;;: reputed 
to be a good organizer. I knew ub'-olutely nothing against him and had heard 
that he wa" a ma11 of t-ub:-bnre. 

1fr. R. Ca,.:t•y ,vood I have known ;;:inre he wa:=: a boy, a barri"ter of high 
Ftarirling and unblcmi:,:hed integrity, that w::is my view and opinion then and 
now. ' 

I wa,: of the opinion at that time that there was a quarrel between Mr. 
Haney and Mr. Marhaffie, that wa-- rngg,·--tPd by ~1r: La~h':-3 letter and by the 
term-- of thi~ m,olution of the Board. I am only giving my Yiew at that timP, I 
I am not ,-tating that is -o, but my view had a bearing on my action. I 'laiil 
before• and I tell your lord~hip now tlrnt in the Finance Department you frr-
qw·ntl:v get ktters from dii;:sati:-afied offieiali!' of banks and other in::titutions, I 
c rn ,-ure t ht>re are a number on the files of the Finanre Department now, thf•rt· 
,wn· wht>n I wa:i there anyway. We rder tho:,:e fir'-t to the Board for a stat1 -
ment of the fart;;, in aernrdanrc with thP pr:wti,·P and with the Bank Act. At 
lrn~t that i;;: what I did; we gPt thr amwrr of the Board, and if the un"wrr i-: 
.,rt-~f:ir1ory pnd you have confirlrnee in the Board you say, ''Well here ii, a 
di~.-•.•n,ion brtwcrn oflkials and the Pn:"id1ml or other rhief official," and you 
art arcordingly, a~ you deem proper. 

Xow as this mattrr had been up brfore and I wa;;: anxiouc;· to know the 
l'untinuatiun of the mattrr following -:\Ir. Hanry'-; advice to me of June, 1916, 
I eallrd for a :ape rial rrport. I wrote ::\Ir. L'.1,:h on Ort-0ber 31Ft, 1918; 

0THWA, October 31. 1918. 

Re Home Bank 
''Dnn MR. LAE'H,-1 am obligr.d for yours of the 30th in~Lmt., and 

for the stntrment.of the Board of Dirertors, enrlosed therein, relat.ing to 
rrrtain charge;; made ugain--t the m:rnugement of the Bunk by Mr. 
Marl uffie. AR ~fr. MarhaffiP'::l l'klrgP-" relate, among other things, tu 
t'rrt~in arcount-, whirh I disrn~~rd with you ,:ome two and a half year"' 
ago, and as the Rtatcment of the Board of Dired . .or~ is general with 
regard to some of thc..;e, I dl'~ire, with n•-;pet·t to accounts numbered 2, 
3 and 4 on page 5 of the Board's report, the following supplemenbry 
information: 

Copies of the Bank's Ledgn entrirs 1,howing in detail all advanrt:-; 
made, interest added from time to timr, any payments in reduction of 
prinripal, and full particulars of :::erurity now held. 

It is stated in the Board\; report that no unpaid interc~t upon 
arcount No. 3 or other inartin &\'r{lunt..; hu;-; been erulited to profit-" 
sinl'e l\fay 31, 1917. This wou'.d ~rem to imply that for many year;, 
int.erei,t has br·m added to principal of acrountf' which were not capable 
of liquidation or reduction and tliat ..;uc+ added interest is therefore now 
repre:::ented as part of the Bank's capital or reserve in it::i p~blic state­
ment~. As the note circulation of the Bank is dependent upon its paid­
up rapital, and a-; the otlwr Bank" of Canada are guarantors of this 
circulation, it appears to me to be a matter of importance both to thi, 
Departmrnt an<+ to the Banks that the rapit::tl of ~he Bank should repre­
:::ent sub;.tuntial a---;et~. If, as a matter of fact, the capital of the Bank 
is repre,-entrd by interPft amounting; in the aggregate to a large sum and 
added over a course of yeafo to tlw principal of inactive acrounts, a 
~eriou:,; que:::tion arises a-, to whether 'the true position should not be 
dc-rlarecl and the rapital and rer::erve of the Bank written down accord-

, 

I 
I 
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ingly. In this rnnuection I require a statement showing how much of 
the capital and rPf'Prve is represented by intPre-st which has been added 
from time to time to the principal of the thrre accounts in quei:;tion and 
a~y othPr arrount where the principal loaned ,ha,; exceeded $250,000. 

I ihall be obliged if you will obL1in this further information for me 
as rnon as possible. 

Z. A. LAc;H, EsQ., K.C., 
Bank of Commerce Building, 

Toronto. 

Yours faithfully," 

Now I de,,ire to say, my lord., that my opinion is, and was then,~--,it is not 
"o important what it is now as what it was then-that the question of capital­
i7ing intere,::t is a que:-t.ion of fact, a question of <irrurity. If as a mutter of fart 
t.iwn' '., hl;>undanre of Rerurity, so that the principal and' the interr-;t which is 
addrd i,- welJ secured, my view waf' then and is now that it would properly 
come into earnin!!s. But of course there is a va-;t range between extreme ca:;rs 
whirh you could mrntion, of an account whirh is obviously well secured and 
an a, c·ount which is rather doubtfully secured, like a timber account, when! 
you might have the- opjniorni of men varying very hmch with regard to the 
valur of the timber account, and I h:::d imprel:ised upon Haney and Barnard 
the reRponsibilitv upon them, and the Board for satisfying themselves that 
before interc::t is taken into profit that they should be sure of the value of 
the bC•·uritie::;, and lakr on I had asked and received from Mr. La;:h the a<isur­
ance that interei:;t would not be taken into capital upon the timber account 
or the New 'Orleans account; in the case of the lattt\r until it was cleared up. 
Your lordRhip recollects that. 

Then follow,; a number of other Irtters whirh I prove. They· e1how that there 
wn-1 cl\nsiderable delay. I had got bark by October 31st, 1918, from my Victory 
Loan campaign. The influenza was raging at that time, and Col. Mason had 
influenza. That was the fall of the influenza epidemic. 

Then in rrply to that I got Mr. La:;:h's letter of January 25th, 1919, which 
is Exhibit 105, page 191. There wrrc various delays in connection with hi:,; 
rep1y and I should like to rrad this lPtter and p:ut it in in full, because I regard 
it also as an important letJter. 

"Sir THOMAS WHITE, 
Minister of Finance,, 

Ottawa, Ont. 

"TORONTO, January 25, 1919. 

Re Home Bank 
•My Dear Sm THOMAS,-! have received from the Home Bank, and 

now enclo~e, the particulars relating to the following accounts:-
(!) Pellatt. 1 

· (2) A. C. Frost & Co., Western Lumber, etc. 
(3) New Orleans. · 

Being-
Pellatt. 
Copy of ledger entries. 
Securities held. 

:An analysis of the account~, which will enable you to understand 
them fully. 

:Ko interest charge to this account remains unpaid; on the contrary all 
intere1>t has been paid and the principal has been reduced. 

Frost & Co. 
Copy of ledger entries. 
Securities held. 
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A summary which will enable you to understand the a('count.c;, from 
which you will :aee that the amount of interest included in the debit balance 

is $688,966.42. In addition to this subsequent interest up to November 
30, 1918, but not taken into the a('count or included in the debit halance 
amounts to $253,737.54. , , 

With referen('e to the value of thP security held, amounting to 
$2,986,267. I am informcd that the most compefont "crui:;:ers'' whom the 
Board of Directors rould find were employed to examine the mm,t impor­

tant lots and to report the amount of the various dasses of timber therein. 
The bank ha:'l their reports in full detail, al,-o th1, detailed reports of the 
crui1<ers who previously examined nll the property, vPry voluminous docu­

ments which are at your service if you desire to have them examined. 

The values placed upon the timber have bePn fixPd, upon the best inform­
ation which could be procured, and I am instructed to ,-::iy that in fixing 
H1ese valUP'- the board wa-, very conservative in it,.; estimate~. Two rnl'm­

bers of the Board personally went to Briti,-h Columbia and went through 
the limit;:; and got information as to other sales. Negotiations are pending 
for the ,:ale of :;ome of the timber at prit'e::; in extPi'R of the values fixed by 

the bank. 
I am instructed to say that in the opinion .of the Board the whole 

amount uf the bank's duim, including subsequent intPrest not •taken into 
_profih, is fully securul. 

New Orleans. 
Copy of krlgcr entries. 
~eeuritie,; held. 

You will see that the total interrst up fo 31st November, 1918, was 
charged to these accounB. A memo enclosed with the statements explains 
the reason for thi,;. 

Although in our corresp6ndence this account has been called .for con- • 
venience "New Orlcan::;" yet it began by an advance made to the Prud!'ntial 
Trust Company, for which certain :-ocr.urities upon the New OrlPans Rail­

ways wrre given. The bank felt that it would have to realize in the best 
way upon the::;e ,-ecurities, and the whole position in N cw Orleans was 
rcorganiznl and turned into a going concern, whieh i" realizing profit..,, 

which I am told arc ,-;uffieicnt to cover th1· intcre-;t; but, to strengthen the 

po-;it,ion, the profits except $25,000 remittrd to the bank, as mentioned in 

the memo, wne allowed to be u~l'd in betterment, and improvements. 
The bank expects a payment soon on account of interest, and that no 
arrear:< will further ac-cumulak The PrudC'ntial Company is ::till irnlcbted 

to the bank in the amount of the original advance and interest and ih 
liability form:< part of the bank's -.:pcurity, but, owing to the position of 
tlrn Prudcnt;al Company, it was not thought advisable in the'intcrcsts of 
the bank to proceed against it until the position was further advanced. 

I am instruckrl. that the board of the bank is convinced that outside of 
the liability of the Prudential Company the taecurities now held will realize 
for the bank the full amount of its claim, leaving the liability of the 
Prudential to the good. · 

As stated in the Bo::trd's communication to you, I have been consulted 
from time to time with reference to the :N°.£w Orleans situation, the Pellatt 

account and the Frost account, and I have given the Bank my conf-idered 
judgment and advice in the.;;e matters, and in all othep; brought to my 
notice. I am convinced that very sincere efforts on the part of the Board 
and management have been made during the pa::;t three years to improve 
the position of the Bank, and my opinion is that these efforts have been 

so far successful, and that the Bank's position has been greatly improved 
and I f.ee no reason to think that the effort-, will not be continued or that 

\ 

1 
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. the position will not continue to improve. I feel that the conclusion which 
you arrived at, to allow the new management to make these efforts, was a 
wise one in the public interest, and I feel equally sure that a continuation 
of this attitude on your part will be further justified by the result. 

As the New Orleans enterprise is earning net profits and will soon be 
remitting moneys for interest, the account is not regarded as inactive or 
as one in which the amount involved will be indefinitely tied up. 

The accounts in the name of the Canada Securities Corporation and 
L. C. Herdman was opened, under Counsel's advice, in connection with the 
reorganization. 

If there be any further information which you would like, I will see 
that it is sent to you. 

I am, yours faithfully. 
(Sgd.) Z. A. LASH." 

Now I come to Exhibit 106, which is the last letter I sent Mr. Lash. I took 
no further action with regard to that matter. It is dated January 29th, 1919. 

"Dear Mr. Lash:-I am obliged for yours of the 25th instant, fur­
nishing the particulars of accou_nts required by me some time ago. I 
_shall look over the documents carefully and if I require anything further 
will communicate ~ith you. Thanking you for the attention you have 
been good enough to gi:ve the matter, believe, me, yours faithfully." 

Now, my Iord, I wish to give you in a general way an idea of the condition 
which prevailed from 1914 to 1919, if your lordship thinks it is relevant. The 
be:.i.ring I think it may possibly have is that it shows the whole situation as well 
as this particular situation and in ,that connection, on account of some mis­
statements which have been made, no doubt inadvertently, referring to some 
interview that I had given to the Press, I would Eke in either the examination 
or the cro,;s-examination to put in the statement which I prepared myself and 
gave to the Press and which I verify. It bears upon the question of my attitude 
of mind and it has been referred to outside, and, I am inclined to think, in the 
petition of the depositors, but I am not sure. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: The petition is taken from your own statement. 
Sir THOMAS WHITE: Then we had better have the statement in. 
Mr. McLA'LGHLIN: I am quite satisfied that it should go in. 
Sir THOMAS WHITE: Wrong inferences have been drawn from it, I think 

inadvertently, and I think it will help to clear up the situation. This is an 
interview which l gave the Press. I may say that in the interviews, which I 
gave to the Press from time to time, because, as I regarded it, I was very unfair­
ly attacked, I had not before me the papers, the documents, the records, which 
were in the Finance Department, and which down to the present time have 
been there. Nor had I, until after the failure of the bank,-although this 
interview was given after I got my file back-the file which ~fr. Roberts 
returned to me. When I gave these interviews, I had before me the file which 
Mr. Roberts had returned to me, but I had not the original Fisher communication 
and all those other papers, and I was speaking from memory over a period of 
eight years. Nevertheless I have got a pretty good memory I think. This is 
the interview, as published. 

Mr. LEE: What are you reading from now, Sfr Thomas, the Globe o;r Mail? 
Sir 'l'HoMAS WHITE: Oh, I always rea.d from the Mail; bless my heart, you 

would not expect me to read from -the Globe, would you? It is from the Mail 
of January 17th, 1924. ·, 

"In view of publicly .. made allegations to the effect that during my 
period of office as Minister of Finanl'e disclosures were made to me which 

780-19-3 
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should have resulted in the closing of the Home Bank, I desire to make 
the following statement: 1 "No facts were at any time brought to niy attention while I was 
Minister justifying action on my part which would have brought about 
suspension of the Bank. 

"In 1916 complaint was received by me on behalf of the three West­
ern Directors of the Bank, Messrs. Crerar, Kennedy 1;md Persse, with 
respect to three accounts of the Bank, viz., the Frost Timber account, the 
Pellatt account and an arcount with the Prudential Trust Company 
relating to the bonds of a New Orleans traction <·ompuny. As the ques­
tions involved related to the legality of the account with the Trust Com­
pany and the taking of further ,;erurity from the Pellatt Land Companies, 
I suggested that Mr. Z. A. Lash, K.C., should look into these matters and 
report to me. I have in my pos:3es:3ion a letter from Mr. John Fisher; 
K.C., who acted for the three "\Vec;tern Directors expreRRing satisfaction 
at the selection of Mr. Lash for this purpose." 

Now that is slightly inaccurate, because I had not the papers before me, 
and as a matter of memory I did not recall that I had expre:-:sly, under the 
provisions of the Bank Act, called for those returns, and had asked Mr. Lash, 
when he and Haney came down to report to me that Mr. Haney was to do 
nothing without Mr. Lash's consent, as I have already explained ii;i. my evidence. 

"As the result of my action at this time, General Mason was dis­
placed as General Manager and the Board of Direotors of the Bank. 
harmonized and reorganized under the pre,:idency of Mr. Haney. 

"It was reported to me that the reorganized Board was satisfied that 
it would be found that the capital of the Bank wa:; intact and that there 
was no danger of loss to creditor,.; or depositors. I was assured by letter 
on behalf of the three We'ltern Dirertors who had brought the three 
accounts to my attention that no external audit or inspection was 
necessary." 

. I 
Now that was for :Mr. Cre.rar, and I may say to your lordship that although 

I was pressed for months to publish Mr. Crerar's lett<'r, that on account of its 
being personal, I declined to do so, although I was under a good deal of unjust 
criticism. 

"It was reported to me that Messrs. Crerar and Haney had visited 
British Columbia to inspect the Frost timber limits, and that they had 
advised that the security thereon held by the Bank was adequate to 
cover the debt to the Bank. The minute of the Board in this connection 
was as follo{vs: 

MINt;TE OF THE BOARD 

":March, 18, 1916. 
"The account of the A. C. Frost Company again came up for discus­

sion and Messrs. Crerar and Haney reported that they had visited the 
Coast in accordance with minute of the Board meeting 28th January, 
1916, and reported that they had come to the conclusion that there was 
ample security in the timber limit and properties held by the Bank for the 
present indebtedne~s and that in their judgment the whole of such in­
debtedness can be realized from said assets in from three to five years." 

"I was advised that Mr. Haney had visited New Orleans and re­
ported favourably to the Board as to the traction bonds' account and 
that no loss would result to the Bank in connection therewith. 

"I was advised that all arrears of interest upon the Pellatt account had 
been paid up and provision made for the reduction of the principal. 

J 
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Further security had been taken through the services of Mr. Lash which 
in the opinion of the Board, ensured that no loss would result to the Bank 
on this account. 

"In August, 1918, I receiYed a compl~int from a former official111 of 
tlte Bank that interest upon the Frost timber account had been taken 
ir.to profits for the fiscal year, 1916-17, and that Mr. Haney was not 
Heping :Mr. Lash informed as to the transactions of the Bank. The 
latter statement •was denied by Mr. Lash. With regard to the former 
st:atement, interest had been taken into account for the fiscal year men­
tioned, but this was not unlawful if the Board believed, as they evidently 
did, in view of the Crerar-Haney report, that the timber limits were 
worth substantially more than the claims of the Bank. From the end • 
of the fo;eal year 1917 until 1921 I am advised that no interest upon this 
account was taken into profit:,;. I called for and received copies of ledger 
eatries verifying the statement of the Board and a statement that there 
whe no arrears of interest upon any other accounts of $250,000 and over. 

" "By reason of the allegation contained in this complaint respecting 
tire Frost timber account, it is now claimed that an investigation should 
have been made and the Bank closed. An investigation at that time 
at the instance of the· Minister would have resulted in the destruction 
of the credit of the Bank, whether it was solvent or insolvent. 

NO SOUND GROUND FOR INQUIRY 

"The fact that intem,t had been added to the Frost timber account 
constituted no sound ground for instituting an investigation, which would 
have had most serious consequences with respect to the Home Bank and 
the general financial situation. We were in the midst of the $700,000,-
000 Victory Loan c~mpaign of 1918, which extended over the autumn of 
that year with payments by subscribers extending throughout many 
n;onths of the following years. The loan was vital to the agricultural and 
business interests of: Canada, whose products it financed; to the returned 
soldiers whose gratuity of $130,000,000 it supplied, and to the Govern­
ment in connection with its immense war liabilities. It is. now suggested 
that at such a time or in the even more troubled period of unrest succeed­
ing the Armistice, the then Minister of Finance should have taken action 
which would have resulted in the closing of the bank without having facts 
before him evidencing its insolvency. ~ 

"In reply to the last complaint mentioned, I was furnished with a 
unanimous resolution of the Board stating that in their opinion no loss 
would result upon the accounts in quest10n; that dividends were not 
being paid out of interest added to the Frost account, that the net profits 
of the bank were more than double the dividends paid, and that the 
prospects of the bank were more favourable. 

"The Minister of Finance, under the Bank Act, is given no power to 
order the suspension of a bank. He can) it is true, institute proceedings, or 
order an investigation which may have that effect, but the judgment as 
to whether he will do so in a particular case must be his own, to be 
determined by the facts and circumstances before him." 

I intend later on to raise that point for your lordship's consideration: that 
the discretion given the Minister in thf Bal).k Act, ,as to whether he will proceed 
under eection 113; or whether under sect.ion 56A he will call for a report from 
the auditor, or ~ppoint an outside auditor, is the discretion of the l\t1inister, 
'Qllfette:red and UI\conditioned, and not subject :to review by any tribunal. I shall 
take that as an exeeption a little 13:ter, although I am quite prepared to waive 
it for the present, because I want all the facts to come out for the information 
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<>f the Canadian public; but I am going to take that technical exception because 
I submit that it is sound in law and in accordance with the Constitution. Never-
theless I want to be fully cross-examined. 

1 

"Under no circumstance-; would I have allowed a bank to fail during 
the period in question. I had many difficult and dangerous financial situa­
tions to deal with during the war. At it:; outbreak, in view of the panic 
which prevailed, the Government, at my in!'-tanre,,placed itself behind the 
banks of Canada and gave public asrnrance that it would loan them such 
sums. as they might require to meet the conditions of the war, and would 
take all further ~teps necessary to safeguard the financial situation during 
its continuanre. At a later period I found it necessary to make a state­
ment in the House to allay unre;..t caused by the agitation for the so-called 
conscription of wealth. If it had appeared to me that the bank was not 
able to meet its public obligations, I l;lhould have taken steps to have it 
taken over by some other bank or banks, or failing that, would have given 
it necessary assistance under the Finance Act, 1914. Such action would, 
in my view, have been justifiable in the public interest at that time. 

"It is not unusual for Mini,;tcrs to receive complaints from ex-officials 
respecting financial or other in,;titutions. If any Minister of Finance since 
Confederation took greatPr pairn in connection with any such complaint 
than I did in the Home Bank case, I should like to have his name and the 
particular in,-tance dr -1wn to my attention. 

"When I left Ottawa in 1919 times were prosperous. All financial 
institutions were doing well. The Home Bank had an important and 
expanding business. Its deposits were large and growing and there was no 
reason known to me why with the legitimate profits which it might be 
expected to make it should not be able to take care of any marginal losses 
which it might sustain upon any of the accounts which had been brought 
to my attention. 

"At no time was it sugo;ested by the "\Vestern directors or anyone else 
that the bank was not able to meet its liabilities or that it should be 
wound up. 

"I have no desire to hamper the depositors of the Home Bank, the 
condition of some of whom is deplorable, to seek relief in any way they 
may deem expedient. I merely desire to place the facts before the Cana­
dian public, 'whom I had the honor to serve, I believe to the best of my 
ability, as Minister of Finance during the war. 

"T. WHITE." 

Now that substantially represented my view at that time, that the bank was 
not insolvent. There were some accounts on which there might be heavy marginal 
losses. The bank had a fine clientele, had a great standing with the Roman 
Catholic community and, as I say, there were some very able men of integrity 
on its Board. 
· That practically: finishe:; my evidence except that I would like to say this, 
your ,lordship, that I have been bulking in the financial community a good deal, 
and I understood things with regard to the bank's condition both then and later. 
I do not know whether your lordship would care for evidence of that kind, you 
might say it is hearsay and yet it is not, becaµse I am, in a way, a banking·expert, 
Jind in touch with those matters. It has this bearing, it indicates my view as to the 
position of the bank, but it m:iy be objectioMble to put that in, it is not sufficiently 
definite. · 

I understood Mr. Daly was making .a success of the bank. i',1:r. Daly sue, 
~eeded Mr: Haney. He was not there in my time, but they ~aised the dividen~t3 
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of the bank, and I understood Daly put in money of his own, and I was delighted 
to hear that the bank was making a success. I give that evidence without the 
slightest hesitation and equivocation, that is, as to that· feature of it. The divi­
dends had been increased later on. 

I did not give the matter particular attention after I went out of office as 
Minister excepting this, that when Sir Henry Drayton wrote me in 1921, I think it 
was, I wrote him a letter and told him just to look into those accounts again. 
Those were the three things that gave me concern. As I said, I thought there might 
be marginal losses on them, but I had received those reassuring statements from 
Mr. Lash, and Mr. Haney and the Board, and you do not close up a bank because 
it has got two or three weak accounts. It is a question of whether by properly 
administering the bank, and writing off a certain amount from year to year, you 
can meet them. I have no hesitation in saying that if I had been a young banker, 
knowing what I do about banking-and I think I know a good deal-that on the 
statements before me, I do not say the real situation, I would not have hesitated 
to take over that bank on its clientele with its twenty million dollars of deposits, 
with its possibilities of expansion. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: There were only ten millions in 1916. 

Sir THOMAS WHITE: I am not speaking.of 1916, I am speaking of this later 
period. 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: 1923? 
Sir THOMAS WHITE: I do not know what the deposits we;e. What were they 

in 1918? 
Mr. LEE: About twenty-one millions in 1923. 

Sir THOMAS WHITE: However, my point is that, on the evidence before me, 
I could have taken hold of that bank and, by using the profits to advantage, writ­
ing off a certain amount from year to year, have put it in a fairly good position, 
because it had one of the best clienteles in Canada, the Roman Catholic com­
munity, and others too. 

Now, your lordship, that is my examination in chief and I am prepared to be 
cross-examined, and I shall ask the privilege to re-e~amine myself a little later, but 
before I submit to cross-examination I wish to draw to your lordship's attention 
the sections of the Bank Act, 113 and 56a, and to say that I waive, for the 
purpose of my examination, any right I may have to object to cross-examination 
with regard to my discretion, because I want all the facts to come out. I am 
going to submit to your lordsip, as a legal proposition, that the discretion of the 
Minister who is· in touch with the situation, who is giving it his consideration, i!3 
unfettered and unconditiorted, and consequently I am going to show later on, al­
though I would have no personal objection whatever to a finding of your lordship 
that that part of the Commission which purports to give your lordship the right 
to review the executive action of myself, unfettered and unconditioned,_,the ex­
ecutive action of myself, or Sir Henry Drayton, or the Honourable Mr. Fielding­
although I am not appearing for them-is ultra vires, and has no effect whatever, 
but I am so desirous that the public sh,ould have the facts in this that I am going to 
waive that, and I want Mr. McLaughlin to cross-examine me. 

His LoRDSHIP: Have you any questions to ask, Mr. McLaughlin? 

Mr. McLAUGHLIN: Will we go on to-night? 

Sir THOMAS WHITE: I would rather go on in the morning myself. 

Mr. LAFLEUR: We cannot finish to-night anyway. 

Sir THOMAS WinTE: I have had to shout a little for Mr. McLaughlin's 
benefit and my voice is a little weak. 

' 

I 
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His LORDSHIP: We will adjourn until to-morrow morning at half pas~ ten 
o'clock. 

Sir THOMAS WHITE: I have to thank your lordship for allowing me a good 
deal of latitude in this matter. 

(Proceedings stand adjourned at 4,30 p.m. Thursday, 24th April, 1924, until 
10.30 a.m. Friday, 25th April, 1924). 

, 
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